Houstonfirst.

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021 — 3:00 P.M.
Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las Americas, Suite 200
Houston, Texas 77010
HOUSTON FIRST BOARD ROOM

BOARD MEMBERS:

David Mincberg (Chair), Desrye Morgan (Vice-Chair), Sofia Adrogué, Elizabeth Brock, Nicki
Keenan, Reginald Martin, Ryan Martin, Alex Brennan-Martin, Paul Puente, Bobby Singh, Tom
Segesta, Gerald Womack, Jay Zeidman, Mayor Pro-Tem Dave Martin, Ex-Officio, Council
Member David Robinson, Ex-Officio

In accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act, this Agenda is posted for public information,
at all times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin
board located on the exterior wall of the Houston City Hall building, located at 901 Bagby. The
Agenda is also available online at https:/www.houstonfirst.com.

To reserve time to appear, come to the meeting at least ten minutes prior to the scheduled
public session shown on the Agenda.

Any questions regarding this Agenda, or requests for special needs assistance, should be
directed to Lisa K. Hargrove, General Counsel at either 713.853.8965 or
Lisa.Hargrove@houstonfirst.com

Code of Business Conduct and Ethics - As a reminder, under Houston First Corporation’s Code
of Business Conduct and Ethics Policy, if you have a potential conflict of interest that you have
not previously disclosed relating to a transaction or arrangement being discussed or voted on,
you should notify the Chair and refrain from voting on the transaction or arrangement and recuse
yourself from the discussion on the matter at hand. You should have received a copy of the Policy,
but if not, let us know and we will provide one for you.

l. Call to Order
II. Public Comments

.  Minutes — August 26, 2021



Iv.

V.

VI.

Board Business

A. Consideration and possible approval of the Houston First 2020 Annual Financial

B.

Audit.

Consideration and possible approval of an Insurance Brokerage and Risk
Management Services Agreement between Houston First Corporation and Arthur
J. Gallagher Risk Management Setvices, Inc.

Consideration and possible authorization of actions necessary to effectuate the
transfer of employees from Convention & Cultural Services, Inc. (CCSI) to Houston
First Corporation effective January 1, 2022, including, but not limited to, (i)
approval of a notice of termination of the existing Services Agreement between
CCSl and Houston First; (ii) transfer of sponsorship to, and the assumption by,
Houston First of each employee benefit plan, program, policy or arrangement
sponsored by CCSI (other than the CCSI 401(k) Plan) as well as any trust
agreements, insurance plans and all service agreements related to such plans, or
provided on, or on behalf of, the employees or CCSI, that are applicable to such
transfer; and (jii) establishment of a deferred compensation 457(b) Plan for certain
eligible employees as well as approving an agreement to administer the 457(b)
Plan.

Presentations, Reports, and Updates
A.
B.
C.

Houston First Chairman Report
HFC President & CEO Report
Supplier Diversity Report

Adjourn



lll. Minutes — August 26, 2021




Houstonfirst,
INUTES

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
August 26, 2021- 3:00 P.M.
Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las Americas, Suite 200
Houston, Texas 77010
HOUSTON FIRST BOARD ROOM

The Board of Directors (“Board”) of Houston First Corporation (the “Corporation” or “HFC”), a
Texas local corporation created and organized by the City of Houston as a local government
corporation pursuant to TEX. TRANSP. CODE ANN. §431.101 et seq. and TEX LOC. GOV'T.
CODE ANN. §394.001 et seq., held a meeting at Partnership Tower, 701 Avenida de las
Americas, Suite 200, Houston, Harris County, Texas 77010, on Thursday, August 26, 2021,
commencing at 3:00 p.m.

Written notice of the meeting including the date, hour, place and agenda for the meeting was
posted in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act.

The following Board members participated in the meeting: David Mincberg (Chair), Desrye
Morgan (Vice Chair), Sofia Adrogué, Elizabeth Brock, Alex Brennan-Martin, Reginald Martin,
Ryan Martin, Bobby Singh, Gerald Womack, Jay Zeidman, and Mayor Pro-Tem Dave Martin,
Ex-Officio.

The Chairman of the Board called the meeting to order at 3:04 p.m. and a quorum was
established.

1. Public Comments. Cathy Martinez, Director of SEIU Texas, addressed the HFC Board
to discuss the negotiation of a new union contract with Midwest Maintenance. She then
introduced a member of the janitorial staff at Wortham Theater, Ms. Olga Villegas.

Ms. Villegas spoke to the HFC Board with the aid of a translator. Ms. Villegas expressed
concern for the health and safety of workers and asked for the Board’s support in ensuring
proper health insurance, sick time, and compensation for workers. She also discussed the
challenges faced by janitorial staff due to the COVID-19 pandemic and a reduction in
hours.

Board Members thanked Ms. Villegas for her time. They also expressed their gratitude for
hospitality workers and reassured her that her voice was heard.

Management discussed the terms and conditions of the janitorial services agreement with
Midwest Maintenance that is due to expire in 2022.

Ms. Martinez concluded her remarks by summarizing the request of SEIU union members
in establishing wages that meet economic needs and providing workers with adequate
PPE and affordable healthcare.



Houstonfirst,

The Chairman then moved forward with the meeting agenda and acknowledged the
attendance of Vice Chair, Desrye Morgan, and Deputy Chief of Staff for Council Member
David Robinson, Gareth Morgans.

Review and approval of minutes from prior meeting. Following a motion duly
seconded, the meeting minutes of July 15, 2021 were approved as presented.

Presentations and Reports.

A. Houston First Chairman Report. The Chairman opened his report with an update
on the ad hoc committee charged with developing a long-term strategy for HFC.
The Chairman stated that Board Members, Ryan Martin and Jay Zeidman, have
been working closely with HFC management and will make a presentation to the
HFC Board by year-end. He stated that there is an issue with a downtown property
owner adjacent to Discovery Green and HFC will participate in a meeting of
downtown stakeholders. The Chairman then congratulated Michael Heckman on
being named permanent President & CEO of HFC. He then announced that a
luncheon will be held with HFC staff to be followed by a larger reception with HFC'’s
business partners. He also announced that HFC will host the State of the City on
October 13, 2021 and Board Member Elizabeth Brock will serve as Co-Chair.

Elizabeth Brock thanked the HFC Board for their support and stated that she is
working tirelessly to plan an event that represents the City of Houston well.

The Chairman concluded his report by stating that the Vice Chair will lead the
President & CEO evaluation process and a form has been circulated to all Board
Members. He also informed the Board that a special meeting will be held to discuss
the results.

Gerald Womack asked if any information regarding the goals and objectives of the
President had been circulated along with the evaluation.

The Vice Chair stated that all information available had been submitted to Board
Members. She then discussed the solicitation issued for engagement of an
executive search firm to identify candidates for the permanent President & CEO
position that was terminated before a new job description was created. The Vice
Chair stated that she hopes the Board can establish goals and objectives for the
President position going forward.

Mr. Womack stated that establishing clear goals for Mr. Heckman is also for his
benefit and he is unsure if he can complete the evaluation without further
information, which should have also been considered in the hiring process.

The Chairman confirmed that Mr. Heckman is a mayoral hire.

Council Member Dave Martin discussed past President & CEO evaluations and
the evaluation of key performance indicators.



Houstonfirst

The Vice Chair stated that there will be a change in the order of the evaluation
process to address the concerns discussed.

The Chairman stated that dates for the evaluation review will be circulated to all
Board Members and thanked the Vice Chair for overseeing the process.

. HFC President & CEO Report. Michael Heckman informed the Board that HFC

hosted an in-person event for hoteliers to discuss ways to improve business and
over 50 hotels were represented. He explained that HFC intends to host similar
events on a quarterly basis throughout the City. He then discussed the success of
the Dr. Seuss Experience and the challenges faced by the team to generate new
business ideas. He then asked Director of Sales, Nathan Tollett, to discuss the
event.

Mr. Tollett stated that the team is experienced in moving groups from different
dates after Hurricane Harvey. He said it was a tremendous effort that required
much collaboration to host the Dr. Seuss experience seven days a week for three
months; however, when this unique opportunity presented itself, the team
answered the call and nine different departments were in direct coordination. He
noted that the Dr. Seuss Experience had a total of 95,000 attendees during its run
and this experience has paved the way for future opportunities at HFC facilities.

Mr. Heckman then discussed the impact of the Delta variant and the cancellation
of several events, including the NRA. He then asked HFC Vice President of
Business Intelligence and Market Strategy, Cindy Decker, to provide a brief
update.

Ms. Decker stated that leisure demand has been down slightly and hotels have
been running at 60% occupancy in August. She further explained that compared
to 2019, hotel occupancy has increased during the same time frame. Additionally,
she said, due to Hurricane Ida heading to Louisiana, hotel occupancy will increase
as well as some business travel. She then discussed hotel occupancy figures for
different areas of the City.

Holly Clapham, Chief Marketing Officer, then provided a brief communications and
marketing update. Ms. Clapham stated that the communications team only had ten
minutes to prepare a statement regarding the cancellation of the NRA, which made
national news and was released as a syndicated message. She then explained
that Marketing continues to be proactive in the promotion of staycations and leisure
travel. She noted that Houston has also been featured in a number of major
publications such as USA Today and Mr. Heckman will meet with the New York
Times and Financial Times in the coming week. She added that the
communications team is also focused on generating stories about the latest update
to the bio defense system that has been deployed at George R. Brown Convention
Center (GRB) and has been adopted by one-hundred hospitals.



Houstonfirst,

HFC Senior Vice President and General Manager of Convention & Cultural
Services, John Gonzalez, then gave an operations update. Mr. Gonzalez
announced the opening of the performance season in the Theater District
beginning in September and the increased health and safety measures adopted at
the facilities. He then provided a high-level overview of events and stated that the
GRB has hosted over fifty events with 440,000 attendees this year.

HFC Chief Operating Officer, Luther Villagomez, then discussed HFC facility
readiness for hurricane season. Mr. Villagomez stated that he and his team have
been in close communication with the City, Homeland Security, and the Office of
Emergency Management since June, and they are prepared to deploy any flood
gates as needed.

Mr. Heckman then asked HFC Vice President of Finance, Karen Williams, to given
a brief update on staff retention.

Ms. Williams stated that HFC has engaged Octagon Consulting to conduct a
market compensation survey with an analysis on ethnicity and gender. Ms.
Williams stated that the results will be presented to the Benefits, Compensation,
and Finance Committee along with the HFC Board in six weeks.

Mr. Heckman then announced that the Destinations International Advocacy
Summit will be held in Houston October 26-28, 2021. Lastly, he discussed the
success of the summer internship program sponsored by the Greater Houston
Convention and Visitors Bureau and announced that one of the summer interns,
Nedra Bell, has been hired as a full-time events coordinator.

. Financial Update. HFC Chief Financial Officer, Frank Wilson, began his report
with several updates. He also stated that budget preparations are currently
underway and he is in communications with Dr. Bill Gilmer from the University of
Houston to conduct a hotel occupancy tax (HOT) forecast. He then discussed HFC
revenues and expenses through July 2021. The Hilton Americas-Houston Hotel
(Hotel), he noted, continues to see improvement in its finances due to increased
room and parking revenues. Mr. Wilson added that the Hotel was also recognized
by the Houston Chronicle as the “Best of the Best Hotel” in its second annual Best
of the Best Readers’ Choice Awards.

Reginald Martin addressed staffing concerns with HFC’s food and beverage
partners as performances begin to ramp up in the Theater District. Mr. Villagomez
then discussed his recent communications with Levy and any potential strategies
to address shortages in personnel.

Bobby Singh commended management for the success of the Dr. Seuss
Experience and finding creative solutions for revenue generation in the current
climate. He also congratulated the Hotel on a job well done and providing world
class service. Lastly, he recognized management for putting together a great
presentation.



4.

Houstonfirst,

Board Members, Sofia Adrogué and Gerald Womack, also thanked the Hotel for
providing exemplary service.

Board Business.

A. Consideration and possible approval of the Lighting Controls Upgrade
Construction Services Agreement between Houston First Corporation and Prism
Electric, Inc. for a project at the George R. Brown Convention Center.

Following a motion, the Board entered into discussion. Mitch Miszkowski, HFC
Purchasing Agent, discussed the solicitation process for the selection of an
electrical contractor for a project at the GRB. He stated that HFC received a total
of three bids and the lowest bid was submitted by Prism Electric, Inc. He then
asked HFC Development Specialist Manager, Roger Harris, to discuss the
diversity participation goal under the contract.

Mr. Harris stated that he assigned a 15% diversity goal to the project based on
discussions with the operations team. He went on to explain, however, that the
bidder has agreed to meet a 66% diversity goal by utilizing a diverse supplier,
Elect-Net, for the purchase of all equipment related to the project.

There was further discussion amongst the Board. Bobby Singh confirmed that the
item was approved unanimously by the Operations Committee.

Following a motion duly seconded, the approval of a Lighting Controls Upgrade
Construction Services Agreement between Houston First Corporation and Prism
Electric, Inc for a project at the George R. Brown Convention Center was approved
unanimously.

Following the conclusion of Board Business, Mayor Pro Tem, Dave Martin, shared Mayor
Turner’s idea for a legacy project and the creation of a Houston Hall of Fame dedicated to
the arts. He then encouraged HFC to help facilitate the project.

The Chairman asked that Mr. Heckman and his team work together to evaluate the project.

Adjournment. The meeting was adjourned at 4:42 p.m.



IV. (A) Consideration and possible approval of the Houston First 2020 Annual
Financial Audit.




Consideration and possible approval of the Houston First Corporation 2020 Annual Audit.

DESCRIPTION: Houston First Corporation (the “Corporation”) entered into an External Audit Services
Agreement with RSM US LLP to conduct the year-end audit of the Corporation’s consolidated financials
for the year ending December 31, 2020. Management now requests Board approval of the audit as

presented.



Houston First Corporation

Report to the Board of Directors
September __, 2021

A g
VTS LR
\\\3@ 2 a7 s
oY e o e
(@@* O o AW
@b @K% S
R\ if‘\\@\@
S (EINIY > DA
2 20 Q@{"@



September __, 2021

Board of Directors
Houston First Corporation
Houston, Texas

Dear Members of the Board of Directors:

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Houston First
Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. This rrg@grt summarizes
certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in yeureversight
responsibility for the Corporation’s financial reporting process. \L:f% @% \2)

= [ESNNS g3 B)VO
This report is intended solely for the information and seﬁ“g“}’%ﬁ‘é%oa@@@irectors and is not intended to
be, and should not be, used by anyone other thgmgﬁfﬁi&sﬁécifie@%}fty.\lt will be our pleasure to respond to
any questions you have about this report. “‘gﬁ‘préci
Houston First Corporation. » =




Contents

Required Communications

Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates

Exhibit A—Significant Written Communication Between Management and Our Firm

Representation Letter

1-2

A o y
. "\&\\\K (%%3%0 O
/ﬁ\\/%\\ 02T aa@ 5 @x
AN @l ((*\g\\ ( @
@\/\x (@%d e Q@XJ
L . ('S\"\ \ E{\j{ég) e (\(S)Q>
7 C\i\x\-ﬁ 2 (@ = g
@ BN O\ @
i2 @,\\3\“\ = \i\\) \
’@\(Ois‘\) L / @ & (}
gadll BT e C\)\J T
&\ @‘) ’ \$> =



Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor's Communication With Those Charged
With Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor
and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our
responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit, as well as observations arising from our audit that
are significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Area

Comments

Our Responsibilities With
Regard to the Financial
Statement Audit

Overview of the Planned
Scope and Timing of the
Financial Statement Audit

Accounting Policies and
Practices

Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America have been described to you in our
arrangement letter dated March 15, 2021. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged with
governance of their responsibilities, which are also described in that
letter.

We have issued a separate communication, dated March 15, 2021,
regarding the planned scope and timing of our audit and identified
s . ot
significant risks. , F\\E\\\x\,
5 » >
Preferability of AccountingPolicies and Practices
Under accounting pfi,ng\iﬁﬂlg%*géneg,a\l%@éepted in the United States of
America, in ce[t_{i\n circlimsta Gxe@“\,gm’a’nagement may select among
alternative §g¢§‘ignting prgcﬁéé *In our view, in such circumstances,
RIS 0N (2 < . .
mé?i@‘ﬁ‘?ﬂ&”%; gg{g@ed thi {%@%eréble accounting practice.
A @2 ) 7‘\

O\ \ \X \\ = = N\ = N\
’,,(:‘_z\if/}@\‘\ggﬁtignao@a\?c)hak@qﬁﬁiﬂ>\Afccggy{;@1§ Policies
o fFoIALom@/&?TQ a deseription of significant accounting policies or their

k! p-Licéflon th 'LWéré eit_l;ere‘@ﬁé”‘lly selected or changed during the

\year: Ig%@pfp%ragigﬂg%éﬁly adopted Governmental Accounting

~ Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 for the year ended
_De bmb.@ =31:2020. This new standard requires recognition of certain

“ leaseassets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as

o] \é/\afi\ﬁg leases and recognized as revenues or expenses based on
the payment provisions of the contract. As a result of the adoption of
the pronouncement, the Corporation restated beginning net position in
the amount of $14.9 million. The following are amounts reported as of
December 31, 2020:

As a lessee, the Corporation recorded an intangible right to use lease
asset of $14.3 million with a related lease payable of $14.2 million.

As a lessor, the Corporation recorded a lease receivable of $61.6
million offset by a deferred inflow of resources of $59.6 million.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by management in
formulating particularly sensitive accounting estimates and about our
conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates.



Area

Comments

Audit Adjustments

Uncorrected Misstatements

Disagreements With
Management

Consultations With Other
Accountants

Significant Issues Discussed
With Management

Significant Difficulties
Encountered in Performing
the Audit

Significant Written
Communication Between
Management and Our Firm

us b

There were no audit adjustments made to the original trial balance
presented to us to begin our audit.

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than
misstatements that are clearly trivial.

We encountered no disagreements with management over the
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for
management’s judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the
audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the financial
statements.

We are not aware of any consultations management had with other
accountants about accounting or auditing matters.

No significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or the
subject of correspondence with management.

el
We did not encounter any significant difficulties ;‘@eéling with
management during the agd.i_t;j\‘:) '

A copy of a ‘s\igﬁiﬂlgar}t wntte\@‘cémrﬁumcgtnon between our firm and

managga\\mﬁ@\rfit.;éf the Qggpﬁrafion, ,tb.eae//presentation letter provided to

-attached@s Exhibit A.




Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses its knowledge and
experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions about future events. Management
may wish to monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and record these accounting
estimates. The following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the Corporation’s
December 31, 2021 basic financial statements.

Basis for Our
Conclusions on

Management’s Reasonableness of
Estimate Accounting Policy Estimation Process Estimate
Depreciable Life of The depreciable life of The determination is We concluded the
Property and property and equipment made at the time the estimates used by
Equipment is set at the estimated asset is placed into management are
useful life of the related  service and involves reasonable.
asset. various judgments and

assumptions, including \\\
the estimated.useful life i N
and prlor experlence =& ™
A Q \ DN f‘-,oU
Leases The policy requires ]Th\ge culat af (éghe We concluded the
recognition of certain. \/V;\)\\ present \félu‘e IS ‘made estimates used by
assets and liabj ktl\es\for uRganJ]e executloﬁ/of a management are

leases that«are\xw a\lease agr eme‘nt based reasonable based on
conSIder‘edJe\ﬁg term = on, tb&ﬁi@of a r(eeeni ly  the present value
and\eqlf ire a\presehf N @xbcuted flpen?; Hg calculations and related
value calcu}étlon u3|r&g< e)greerr\]emw terms used.

the poremental
borre wing: raté.

S




Exhibit B—Significant Written Communication Between Management
and Our Firm

=
e C
P~ LN uU
A\?g\ﬁ o
[l \//) AN \\185‘?)
6\\; o\
. Yb\ R WA\ f /
< N e o, f\ W P
A 40 e
\\\\\‘Q 25® QOY A
5 \/XS\‘ P 3&‘?)v R /és\\ W 20
\())\15,' = y \O\Cécj(‘tﬁ’ ’ (N,)\;\XJ /&\CJK\J\\(/{J
\“O L Aﬁig\xg’@ ?@©>
AN )\ =)
g xﬁz%\)' <, (%&J “3) pl@ b
N QN N
Q@Y e’ @
ey 2% w5 ¥
A < o ©



Houston First Corporation

(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Financial Statements as of and for the
Year Ended December 31, 2020
and Independent Auditor’s Report Thereon

~aN
3 o
@@@Q 5 @2
~ 9 @@@‘@
W 2o®” @7

\ WS e O

,?\) v.e)\\ = \@%\& @
\@@X\@ O (O 7 oo

W o e
%@@ %@@% h @@



Contents

Independent auditor’s report 1-2
Management'’s discussion and analysis (unaudited) 3-9
Financial statements
Statement of net position 10
Statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position 11
Statement of cash flows 12-13
Notes to financial statements 14-30

\\l\?\g\ s -~
gy '6®9 NG @@ﬁ
SRS Y G
\Og s AN \®\\ ) @
OV RO 0
o\@ @ . @@



Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Directors of
Houston First Corporation
Houston, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Houston First Corporation (the Corporation),
which comprise the Statement of Net Position as of December 31, 2020, and the related Statement of
Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position and Cash Flows for the year then ended, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Corporation’s basic financial
statements, as listed on the table of contents. 1

@“

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statement
Management is responsible for the preparation and faur@ Sf” Ion s%é&ﬁnanc,lal statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally acci pted n thes l),#@é[ﬁ States of America; this includes
the design, implementation and malntenancep Ln férnal c%;o ant to/the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that ﬁﬁ\ﬁée{ rom ms mls 'ement, whether due to fraud or

error. @g
@\\\ %@\\ @@@ )@@
Auditor’s Responsibility \\@ @ \\ @ J f\EX
Our responsibility is to express an o |ri‘ n on th anC| T@ments based on our audit. We

conducted our audit in accord pce° |th ay gm@ tand é’jgsnerally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standard e JUire thg& orm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the«fmam\\%ﬂ statem /ent are er@fror)n material misstatement.

}
An audit mvél;@s performmg procedm%%‘go obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Corporation’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Corporation’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of

the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Houston First Corporation as of December 31, 2020 and the changes in its financial
position and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.



Emphasis of Matter
As described in Note 12, effective January 1, 2020, the Corporation adopted Statement No. 87 of the

Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Leases. The implementation of Statement No. 87 restated
beginning net position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's

Discussion and Analysis as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting
for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context.
We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

3 ON
San Antonio, Texas \\g; ) @5 S
September __, 2021 /(:QB\@J}V d©@
Nk KQ
\ \\CS‘:\)\[[) v ?\\3\\\\)
wr;% k\\ ,GQQX@ /;5\“@&& i @@;
/\'\@{x\v/ﬂ ~ &8 %KJ’P . b)\& Q\‘\&@V’
% o O° {i\)@&@ O
‘f&&\ = i 9\@@ NC \/®\§v
ﬂx\\\ , “@'\ \(; NN
X ( 3 ’\\&\ @@
Q@ R ©
é‘\\Q)\{: \?&@3\‘



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

The following discussion of Houston First Corporation (the Corporation or HFC) should be read in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this report. Historical
results and trends that might appear should not be taken as indicative of future operations. The results of
operations and financial condition of the Corporation, as reflected in the accompanying financial
statements and related notes, are subject to management’s evaluation and interpretation of business
conditions, changing capital market conditions, and other factors that could affect the ongoing viability of

the Corporation.

The Houston Convention Center Hotel Corporation (Hotel Corporation) was formed on behalf of the City
of Houston, Texas (the City), in February 2000 pursuant to Chapter 431, Subchapter D, of the Texas
Transportation Code, and Chapter 394 of the Texas Local Government Code. It was organized for the
specific purpose of constructing, improving, enlarging, equipping, repairing, operating, and maintaining a
convention center hotel (the Hotel) located near and connected to the George R. Brown Convention
Center (the Convention Center). In this regard, the Hotel Corporation was responsible for overseeing the
construction and development of the Hotel; a 1,600-space parking garage (the Pa rﬁté G rage); and
three skywalks connecting the Hotel, the Parklng Garage, and thesGonvention Qe r (the Project).
Construction was completed and the Project opened for bu31 es‘s in Dec%rsﬁéraoo\% as the Hilton
Americas—Houston (the Hilton). As of December 31, fOZ\%Hllon Mana efrient LLC managed the Hotel
through a qualified management contract (the Maq/ag ment Agﬁeeﬁhe

N
On June 1, 2011, the Houston City Counq{ (fh\e\Clty eﬂncl§ appr@@ ithe consohdatlon of the City's
Convention & Entertainment Facnljt)eib\eé rtmer\tj\the De art{peh 4nto(tk@}-lotel Corporation (the
Consolidation), effective JU|¥ mL? iﬁ;l:teimproveﬁ)e Eoorq %ﬁan’/of the City’s convention and
entertainment services by b | g}i?ﬁg van Q tities, rééponSIblePfq}(@eneratmg and spending City hotel
occupancy tax (HOT) revenues uggc\er; e gpg;ﬁﬁmg%od (? m\connectlon with the Consolidation, the
Hotel Corporation reconstltute jar?d ren mg Itéelf as qt;\évHBuston First Corporation,” which assumed
the primary roles and res gc&n)”si IIItIeS\G ‘?h\e De % To accomplish this, the Hotel Corporation
amended its bylaws% rtlclee&ﬁ’ncorgqré 0 broaden its authority to accomplish its expanded
duties and res@ésmllltles The Corpa (a@)h has the authority to exercise all rights and privileges of a
Texas nonprb‘f‘ corporation and, asRa\gbvernmental unit within the meaning of Chapter 101 of the Texas
Civil Practice Remedies Code, |ts operations are governmental and not proprietary functions. The
Corporation is governed by the board of directors appointed and approved by the Mayor and the City

Council.

The City entered into a lease agreement and an interlocal agreement (the Consolidation Interlocal
Agreement) with the Corporation, whereby the Corporation (a) leases all previously existing Department
facilities and Department-managed facilities; (b) operates, manages, maintains, develops, and redevelops
those existing facilities; (c) has been assigned and now administers all of the Department’s obligations
and responsibilities, as well as its revenue budgeted as part of the Department’s budget, including, but
not limited to, municipal HOT receipts, license fees, and concession revenues; and (d) as the City’s
agent, collects, administers, and audits HOT funds in accordance with terms of City ordinances. The
Corporation also agreed to pay the City a one-time fee of $8,620,000 during the City’s fiscal year ended
June 30, 2012 from operating revenues of the Hotel. The Consolidation Interlocal Agreement’s initial term
expires on December 31, 2026, but will be extended automatically until June 30, 2041, unless canceled
by either party on or before June 30, 2026.

On March 4, 2013, the Corporation formed Houston First Holdings, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Corporation, as a “special-purpose” entity for the purpose of owning, holding, selling, leasing, transferring,
exchanging, operating, managing and otherwise dealing with the Hilton and its parking garage.

On June 18, 2014, the Corporation entered into a services agreement with the Greater Houston
Convention and Visitors Bureau (the Bureau or GHCVB), which engaged the Corporation to provide

3



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

marketing, advertising and promotional programs on behalf of the Bureau at a minimum of the same
levels previously funded by the Corporation to the Bureau. The Bureau’s employees have been added to
the Corporation’s existing personnel services contract effective July 1, 2014. The services agreement
required the Corporation to amend its Certificate of Formation to increase the number of authorized board
members from 11 to 13 to include 2 Bureau board members. The expenses incurred as a result of the
services agreement are included in operating expenses as Visit Houston expenses.

On May 22, 2018, the City and the Corporation entered into the First Amendment to the lease agreement
between the parties to amend and restate certain provisions pertaining to insurance, damage from
casualty and City Council approvals, allocations and appropriations.

Overview of the Financial Statements
The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Corporation’s assets, deferred outflows

and inflows of resources and liabilities, with the difference reported as net position. Comn risons in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial posmon of the Cogpq@ho is improving
or deteriorating. The Statement of Net Position can be found on page 10 of th@rep@)rt

The Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes r\@ ?Posmo ><® ‘rt the Corporation’s revenues,
expenses, and resulting change in net position dugr?gr erl@d\ fe})i ed, regardless of when cash is
received or paid. Therefore, revenues and ex&enaes are r orted in the §t€iement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position fq&sgme ltem@ w:II af g@(\éash flow in future fiscal years. The
Statement of Revenues, Expense@an&\@hanges\ln\ﬁé Poilt@ \carthe {o@d on page 11 of this report.

The Statement of Cash Flowg)report ho\/&\%\mh c% \@as prov cﬁay’ or used for, the Corporation’s
operations, financing and lnvestmg\@oﬁ ities, @r\d’r CqUISQfg,gb etirement of capital assets. The
Statement of Cash Flows can&je cﬁmd %\@a s 12-120FhTs report.

The notes to the fl%@&fa statemeﬂfs proy deéadaff)onal information that is essential for a complete
understanding (oz)j.h data in the fmar@@bstatements described above. The notes to the financial
statements carnbe found on pages 14-30 of this report.

Financial Highlights
COVID-19: On January 31, 2020, the Secretary of the United States Health and Human Services

Department declared a public health emergency for the United States and on March 13, 2020, the
President of the United States declared the outbreak of COVID-19 in the United States a national
emergency. As a result of the pandemic and the various restrictions and guidelines related to controlling
its spread, most event organizers and arts groups cancelled or postponed revenue-producing events and
productions in the Corporation managed facilities for the remaining year. In addition, most business travel
ceased for the remainder of the year. Most Houston businesses required employees to work from home.
These conditions resulted in a significant reduction in planned revenues.

In response to the reduction in all of the major sources of revenue and the significantly reduced use of the
managed facilities, the Corporation’s Board of Directors adopted an emergency budget for the remainder
of the calendar year. The reduced expenditure budget recognized a period of limited activity in all facilities
managed by the Corporation. Personnel expenditure reductions were implemented and included both
layoffs and furloughs, as well as salary reductions of remaining personnel.

The City, as the primary government of the Corporation, provided $15 million in financial assistance, as
well as a commitment for a $20 million loan at rates more favorable than the Subordinated Note program.

The measures noted above, combined with existing reserves ensured the corporation had adequate
funds to service debt and maintain the facilities.



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87: The
Corporation implemented GASB 87 effective January 1, 2020; this had a major impact on the
Corporation’s assets, liabilities, deferred inflow of resources and net position. GASB 87 requires the net
present value of the payment stream associated with the right to use an asset be included in the
Statement of Net Position, whether as lessee or lessor. As a result of the implementation, the Statement
of Net Position includes the following balances at December 31, 2020:

Current assets:

Lease receivable $1,883,567
Noncurrent assets:
Lease receivable $59,709,918
Right to use lease asset 14,260,245
Current liabilities: . W\ \\C \
Current portion of the lease payable & \X )@)& 2,212,206
: ) 'E\\/& g 9(370
Noncurrent liabilities: @\%ﬁ\p ; @@ -
Lease payable N ¥ @@@ 5 12,016,802
NSy @ .
W o e
DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES \\\\\ O@%@ AN
Deferred amounts from Ieases \2\\ o @‘@” (S\K @§ V2 6 @\ 59,551,231
)\C AV AEY Q l\'@)\ﬂ
In addition, GASB 87 reqwred riet po§ltxoﬁwa§ of Qeééﬁ'lber 31 Q?D\Q 0 be restated as follows:
\"% ’3
Net position, as previously stal %d(> , \\‘J o O) JXY $162,680,811
Effect of GASB Statemeni\No. 87 k%\” A& (14,884.478)
Unrestricted net po\sg 63\ as restated N \eu $147,796,333
$3(C \) Q \
H\\‘\;D \ l\J



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION INFORMATION
DECEMBER 31, 2020, AND 2019

2020 (Restated) 2019
Current assets $ 74,731,598 $ 141,874,193
Noncurrent assets 158,284,733 96,009,189
Capital assets 488,250,559 483,451,673
Total assets $ 721,266,890 $ 721,335,055
2 ON® )
Deferred outflow of resources - 2\ "$ 4 093"*27\2" $ 4,408,659
Current liabilities ,Af;-[k ‘“‘Q:J)\\ 55 R\Aiﬂ :)89 944 504 $ 124,848,281
Long-term liabilities & \b\)\o b ‘ /‘\»/5\\\7 i 449:357,468 438,214,622
LR g S
Total liabilities AN g7 @8 539802.062  § 563,062,903
\‘:‘BC\;{\ \//r;'J X \‘(’\S;’Xé\‘/) : 0» (\ ;} X R\%\&J T~

Deferred inflow of resources® o Rl e v@)v&) 59,551,231 s

g @ AN > 5\\(\ 59 \/A)\)@J\l
Net investment in caplta as§\ets (%«)\\)}\ L \@)@ % $ 162,707,461 $ 140,129,459
Restricted for deb@gﬁ@u e P & N© A 6,230,832 3,943,537
Restrlcted—\ ther # \\\ix@\; - 217,627
Unrestricted - v (42,431,424) 18,390,188
Net position $ 126,506,869 $ 162,680,811

Net Position: The Corporation’s net position decreased $36,173,942 to $126,506,869 at December 31,
2020, from $162,680,811 at December 31, 2019, representing a 22.24% decrease. Of this decrease,
$23,760,841 is attributable to a decrease in liabilities offset by an increase in deferred inflow of resources
of $59,551,231, as described below. In addition, implementation of GASB Statement No. 87 caused a

$14,884,478 restatement in beginning net position.

Total assets decreased $68,164 to $721,266,890 at December 31, 2020, from $721,335,055 at
December 31, 2019. This decrease was primarily the result of a decrease in cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, net and short-term equity in pooled investments in current assets of $62,321,643,
caused by loss of revenues from the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic on the hospitality and convention
industry. This was offset by an increase in lease receivable in noncurrent assets of $59,709,918 as a
result of the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, and an increase in property, plant and
equipment, net as described below.

Total liabilities decreased $23,760,841 to $539,302,062 in 2020, from $563,062,903 in 2019. The majority
of the change was attributable to a decrease in current portion of notes payable of $25,391,818 as
described below.



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Deferred inflow of resources increased to $59,551,231 in 2020, due to the implementation of GASB
Statement No. 87.

Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment, net increased by $4,798,886 to $488,250,559 in 2020 from $483,451,673

in 2019. This increase was caused by acquisitions of $25,783,358, offset by depreciation expense of
$20,984,472. Acquisitions were the result of continuing work on Hilton room refresh project and
restoration work from Hurricane Harvey.

Debt Payment and Issuance
The Corporation made required principal payments totaling $11,300,000 and $10,920,000 in 2020 and

2019, respectively. In addition, in January 2020 the Corporation made additional principal payments
totaling $32,000,000 on the 2017 Subordinate Lien Flexible Rate Notes, Series A.

In March 2020, the Corporation drew $20,000,000 on the 2017 Subordinate Lien F e\ l@&}?ate Notes,
Series A. In JuIy, the Corporation drew $1,000,000 on the 2019 %} ordlnate Lie Elemble Rate Notes
Series B. As of December 31, 2020, the Corporation had $5§ 000 ava@a@l on the 2017 Subordinate
Lien Flexible Rate Notes, Serles A and $49,000,000 a@ﬁe n the?ig 19Subordinate Lien Flexible Rate
Notes, Series B. i \o B

The total notes payable balance includ é@&édfporatan aIIocagl\_é\pémoq of the unamortized bond
premiums, net of discounts, whm@al@ 26 06@5615 and\$%%}>6939354 aLDecember 31, 2020 and
: ‘ ﬂ/

2019, respectively. ) @ @ \\%&)
\\ 3\ \

The Corporation funds 1/12th of mggannual \dggt\sewlce p;yment each month so that, on September 1 of
each year, the full amount WIll\F} aVallabl @ rpayment?\ se funds, along with the required reserve
funds are held by the Clty\[funds hek’fbythe ley !lﬁted as equity in pooled investments—restricted, are
invested in the Clty@gEneral mvgsfment ppol’@ﬁhe amount of the investments held by the City was
$23,932,368; an \>$22 946,278 at Deiemvlber 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION INFORMATION

DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

OPERATING REVENUES:
Hotel revenues
Venue revenues
Parking revenues
Other operating revenues

Total operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Hotel expenses
Venue expenses
Parking expenses
Visit Houston expenses
General and administrative
Enterprise development
Hurricane Harvey costs )
Depreciation and amortlzatlon

OPERATING LOSS OV)
@)\& & \X\C\\\‘
NONOPERAT\I G REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental revenue from primary government
Interlocal agreement expenses - primary government (sponsorship)
Interlocal agreement expenses - primary government
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss on capital assets disposal

Total nonoperating revenues
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION—Beginning of year,

NET POSITION—ENd of year

2020 (Restated) 2019
27,677,033 $ 91,626,259
19,683,056 24,674,003

5,622,653 14,042,926
8,787,211 4,182,050
61,769,953 134,525,238
&&\
12\95;3 7 9 41,264,764
o @)£6’863 305 31,363,911
6,283,032 9,791,712
_A0,717,269 23,867,221
30,896,772 40,320,876
(f 2,644,797 4,375,535
@”/ = 345,289 294,706
20,984,471 17,715,532
111,688,674 168,994,257

(49,918,721)

(34,469,019)

60,712,154 154,617,775
(3,233,955) (5,789,215)
(10,972,376) (18,328,517)
(16,369,249) (19,126,549)
1,662,180 2,119,022
(3,069,497) 3,857
28,629,257 113,496,373
(21,289,464) 79,027,354
147,796,333 83,653,457

$ 126,506,869

$ 162,680,811




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)

Operating Revenues
Total operating revenues for 2020 and 2019 were $61,769,953 and $134,525,238, respectively, which

represents a 54.08% decrease of $72,755,285. The majority of the decrease in operating revenues for
2020 was attributable to the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the hospitality and convention

industries.

Operating Expenses
Total operating expenses decreased $57,305,583 to $111,688,674 in 2020, from $168,994,257 in 2019.

As discussed above, the decrease was due to the reduced use of the managed facilities and HFC's
efforts to manage the effects of COVID-19 on the financial condition of the organization.

The Corporation’s operating loss, which includes the noncash charge of depreciation, totaled
$49,918,721 and $34,469,019, in 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) R ,\i\\\
X O

Intergovernmental revenue from Primary Government B \\»\i/ @ S

In the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement, the City assign\e/\%ﬁ@‘the ngp@)(ation the net available pledged

revenues to fund operating expenses, capital expe/nditur‘e,s), and- %\ﬁny)other lawful purpose. The

intergovernmental revenue represents the HOT\-\)a}\\@ﬁzpl‘edgeVdF\p\aog ing revenues remaining after debt
service and other debt-related expenses,X\e@@&hé‘feveg%@ﬁ c\Jther(,nO @a‘ﬁing Department fund balances.
N @2 = *’}5 A
In 2020, the intergovernmental re 'i}éh\-/ésflrom(g@\é\r)‘/Go e ﬁé\gt deg»-’ajé@a $93,905,620 to
$60,712,154 from $154,617,7751n 2019 ThiSdecrease was due tosthetombination of a reduction of
: : " N N\ \X, o, ”?&-) . AN . .

HOT and pledged parking revenues cause by Eh%pa dem;g@gm ined with a reduction of other
reimbursements from Primary Gcs;"zéph ent. "@*ﬁf’rric F@@é@/ey related costs.

ot (RS A

NCN &N
Interlocal Agreement Exgen

=xplenses to Primary Gove\kﬁ\ug%nt

In the Consolidatiortintérocal Agreementythe-Corporation agreed to make certain payments to the City
for obligatioﬁi@leviously paid directlxé@@ﬂ‘fe Department. At December 31, 2020, and 2019, these
payments totaled $10,972,376, and $18,328,517, respectively. As the largest of these payments is based
on HOT revenues, the majority of the decrease of $7,356,141 was directly related to the corresponding

reduction in HOT revenues.

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased $2,757,300 in 2020 to $16,369,249 in 2020 from $19,126,549 in 2019. The

decrease was primarily due to the cost of issuance from new debt offerings in 2019.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Budget

The wide availability of vaccines has loosened the impact of COVID-19 to revenues in 2021 with several
larger events being held in the summer of 2021, and leisure travel returning. Many Houston businesses
have employees returning to work, some on a more hybrid model. However, COVID-19 variants are
causing cancelations and postponement of large events. COVID-19 continues to impact the hospitality
and convention industries into 2021 and, to a lesser extent, is expected to continue into 2022.

HFC has managed expenses in 2021, but will draw on the City’s $20 million commitment, as well as draw
on the available Subordinated Note program. Analysis of previous economic downturns reveals a three to
four year time span for revenues to return to pre-downturn. As economic recovery continues,
Management intends to monitor changes in economic conditions closely with a more fluid budget to
accommodate changing conditions. However, the availability of the Subordinated Note Program will allow
HFC to meet its debt obligations and operating expenses through 2023, when HFC expects to return to a

balanced budget.



HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2020

2020
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,730,570
Accounts receivable, net 8,138,203
Notes receivable-current 250,000
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,175,056
Deposits held by others-current 3,044,919
Lease receivable 1,883,567
Short-term equity in pooled investments 39,509,283
Total current assets 74,731,598
NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Notes receivable ) 60,382,202
Equity in pooled investments-Restricted Q\\\B 23,932,368
Property, plant and equipment—net o . 488,250,559
Lease receivable 2 < X w@i 59,709,918
Right to use lease asset Al \E;f NG 14,260,245
- ’(\‘\j}\ \V) 0 ,/@Kﬁ) i
Total non-current assets \,;ﬂ\*] [} \ \@K\)‘}»\i ) 646,535,292
. -~ \ e \ o
Total assets \ M’(\/ ; ~\i®) b s 721,266,890
A (CRIIRTC —
EH\V o \
DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES: k\\l\x @C;J a2 A
Deferred amounts from refunding of debt o ol —\ONES e 4
e ¥ @«9 @&% N 0
! A\

LIABILITIES

CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued interest

Accrued expenses \ 2 -
Due to City of Houston \(V =
Subordinated manageh\é"l\é

Current portion of note payable

Current portion lease payable
Current portion of unearned revenue

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Notes payable
Unearned revenue
Lease payable

Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES:
Deferred amounts from lease

Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

See notes to the financial statements.

10

$ 11,861,864
4,810,743
5,041,136

44,939,298
773,711
19,968,601
2,212,206
337,035

l

89,944,594

l

430,291,014
7,049,652
12,016,802

l

449,357,468

l

539,302,062

l

59,551,231

l

598,853,293

l

162,707,462
6,230,832
(42,431,424)

3 126,506,869

|



HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020

OPERATING REVENUES:
Hotel revenues $ 27,677,033
Venue revenues 19,683,056
Parking revenues 5,622,653
Other operating revenues 8,787,211
Total operating revenues 61,769,953

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Hotel expenses 12,953,739
Venue expenses 26,863,305
Parking expenses 6,283,032
Visit Houston expenses 10,717,269
General and administrative expenses 30,896,772
Enterprise development expenses 2,644,797
Hurricane Harvey costs i 345,289
Depreciation and amortization ) \.\\\f\\l f 20,984,471
Total operating costs and exp%s 111,688,674

o = e f,
OPERATING LOSS ,,}\@‘ %
”\‘\\ b\\}\ \’ @
NONOPERATING REVE(%Q\E\SJ(EXPENSE \w

lntergovernmental\re\@EUe from prrmary governf:hent
Interlocal agreértiant expenses—prlmaxyi \/ernment (sponsorship)
Interlocal agreement expenses—primary government
Interest expense
Interest income
Loss on capital assets disposal
Total nonoperating revenues
DECREASE IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION—Beginning of year, as restated (Note 12)

NET POSITION—ENd of year

See notes to the financial statements.

1

(49,918,721)

60,712,154
(3,233,955)
(10,972,376)
(16,369,249)

1,562,180
(3,069,497)

28,629,257

(21,289,464)

147,796,333

$ 126,506,869




HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020 AND 2019

2020
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Receipts from customers $ 65,043,897
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (73,293,052)
Cash payments for personnel services contract (33,230,615)
Cash from intergovermental payments from primary government 69,618,346
Cash payments for Interlocal agreement to the primary government (10,972,376)
Cash payments for interlocal agreement to the primary government-sponsorships (3,233,956)
Cash payments for Hurricane Harvey costs (345,289)
Net cash provided by operating activities 13,586,955
Al
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES /o@ ~ L\CB\Q\\) ?}
Payments for interest *L\\? ¥ e (2,624,933)
Net cash used in noncapital financing activities ﬁ\i A\ S @@ (2,624,933)
N Y ot
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATEQ@JNAT\I IN (&Q@QT VITIES i
Payments for interest \\\\Q ’\.9) \\Q\r O\ ‘X (16,852,325)
Principal payment on notes payabl x; S a@) ( f'\”\“@’w' @@@- (43,300,000)
Proceeds from debt financing \o) i\,f = ;5\2@ I (Q\\Qk‘v 21,000,000
Payment for deposits held by oihers @ \\ - @5 5 . «@Qi@ - 5,651,196
Acquisition of property, plant, an Xethpmen;g\\ff/ SN (36,885,868)
Net cash used i (l)n ca@ttaﬁand rela’@cF mggr:sﬁ@a@tlwtles (70,386,997)
@ SN F N
CASH FLOWS F@@M INVESTING ACT\ fE
Interest received on investments 1,562,180
Purchase of investments (34,993,678)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 43,327,138
Net cash provided by investing activities 9,895,640
NET (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (49,529,335)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—Beginning of year 65,259,905
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS—EnNd of year $ 15,730,570
(Continued)

12



HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS—CONTINUED
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

2020

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization

Intergovernmental payments from the primary government
Interlocal agreement payments to the primary government
Interlocal agreement payments to the primary government (sponsorship)
Decrease in accounts receivable—net
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets
Increase in other assets

Decrease in accounts payable . \fv\\ “\5),@5‘
Decrease in accrued expenses 3\\\ \r = Q) ~>@"
Increase in due to primary government R l \/ \o <\>§\S\\
Decrease in deferred revenue O\ X\S;\)\”‘> PRGN S o
\ \x\g\ S p—%(\%\) A%
“\Q\\‘\\Xx ) > ”“6\(\% N <
2 o> O\RD)\\':'> = & A\‘@’L\/ - "9(5\7/\9
Net cash provided by operatmg@ctmtles \q\\d“ e = q@&\)\ﬁ‘;’) N
K R AN
‘ AN (CA )
NONCASH TRANSACTIONS 0 \ \\@\‘%’ . \*{”
Fair market value adjustmeﬁik related to ID,\\> '\stmentaw@/“
& > PIE - (5 T
~( i ?}\) ®

P\W N
A3
See notes to the financial statements.

13

$ (49,918,721)

20,984,471
60,712,154
(13,362,249)
(3,233,956)

3,690,387

N 835,696

AN\

O (2,203,769)

(10,280,329)
(4,516,352)
11,296,065

(416,442)

63,505,676

$ 13,586,955

$ (114,642)




Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization

Houston First Corporation (the Corporation or HFC) [formerly, Houston Convention Center Hotel
Corporation (the Hotel Corporation)], a component unit of the City of Houston, Texas (the City), was
formed on February 18, 2000, under the provisions of Chapter 431, Subchapter D of the Texas
Transportation Corporation Act, and Chapter 394, Vernon's Texas Codes Annotated, Local Government
Code. The purpose of the Hotel Corporation was to aid and act on behalf of the City in establishing,
constructing, improving, enlarging, equipping, repairing, operating or maintaining (any or all) a
1,200-room convention center hotel in downtown Houston [such hotel to be within 1,000 feet of the
George R. Brown Convention Center (the Convention Center)] (the Hotel) and a parking garage (the
Parking Garage) for approximately 1,600 vehicles adjacent to the Hotel. The Hotel was completed in
2003 and opened on December 4, 2003.

On June 1, 2011, City’s city council (the City Council) approved the consolidation of the Clty ]
Conventlon & Entertainment Facilities Department (the Department) into the Hotel Corimvation (the
Consolidation), effective July 1, 2011, in order to improve the coordknatlon of the G‘dty<s convent|on and
entertainment services by bringing various entities responSIble fQﬁgenera’cmgﬁﬁd spending City hotel
occupancy tax (HOT) revenues under one governing bodh dn @onnectl Qi ith the Consolidation, the
Hotel Corporation reconstituted and renamed itself esg‘l-d.léton Eirs t?C@rporatlon and Houston First
Corporation assumed the primary roles and res\po é):) lities o f?ﬁé epartment To accomplish this, the
Hotel Corporation amended its bylaws ar a\gles of mqupo?eho ocbrbaden its authority to accomplish
its expanded duties and responsbﬂnﬁee&\‘ﬂa orp Lfgh has t e«é’éthorlty to exercise all rights and
privileges of a Texas nonprofit cor P ratlon end,bs ) govem@ental uni Wlt it the meaning of Chapter 101
of the Texas Civil Practice Reljgxedles Codt—:'\}Y s)ope %P s-dre goyem\m ntal and not proprietary
functions. The Corporation |s\gover{1e Jp ”the d'of dlrectq(iappomted and approved by the mayor
and City Council. 2% )U mQN

@,\\\ «®\®\U\‘ @ A
The Corporation (ayg N all preyl ﬁ@ly ex1§tj5\g\E5epartment facilities and Department-managed
facilities; (b) opera a3, manages; mamtalﬁs de&elops and redevelops those existing facilities; (c) has
been assngn r%d now administers b(of’}ﬁe Department’s obligations and responsibilities, as well as its
revenue budgeted as part of the Department’s budget, including, but not limited to, municipal HOT
receipts, license fees and concession revenues; and (d) as the City’s agent, collects, administers and
audits HOT funds in accordance with terms of City ordinances. The Corporation currently has no
employees but has entered into personnel services contracts to provide the personnel and expertise
required to operate its facilities. The City has entered into an interlocal agreement with the Corporation
(the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement), whereby the Corporation will pay $1,380,000 for each
agreement year to lease all existing Department facilities and Department-managed facilities; provided,
that, on each adjustment date, the rent described in this clause shall be adjusted to an amount equal to
the lesser of (1) 105% of the rent in effect for the agreement year immediately preceding the adjustment
date and (2) the product of the rent of effect for the agreement year immediately preceding the
adjustment date multiplied by the adjustment factor. The Consolidation Interlocal Agreement’s initial term
expires on December 31, 2026, but will be extended automatically until June 30, 2041, unless canceled

by either party on or before June 30, 2026.

The Corporation is presented as a discretely presented component unit of the City (legally separate from
the City). Board members are appointed by the mayor of the City and confirmed by the City Council.

14



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 1. Organization (Continued)

On March 4, 2013, the Corporation formed Houston First Holdings, LLC (HFH), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Corporation, as a “special-purpose” entity for the purpose of owning, holding, selling, leasing,
transferring, exchanging, operating, managing and otherwise dealing with the property known as the
Hilton Americas—Houston and its parking garage. The subsidiary is included in the financial statements of
the Corporation as a blended component unit; accordingly, all intercompany accounts and transactions

are eliminated.

On June 18, 2014, the Corporation entered into a Services Agreement with the Greater Houston
Convention and Visitors Bureau (the Bureau), which engaged the Corporation to provide advertising and
promotional programs on behalf of the Bureau at a minimum of the same levels as previously funded by
the Corporation to the Bureau. The Bureau’s employees have been added to the Corporation’s existing
personnel services contracts effective July 1, 2014. The Services Agreement required the Corporation to
amend the Certificate of Formation to increase the number of authorized board members tfrom 11to 13.
The expenses incurred as a result of the Services Agreement are |r\cluded in operathtb\ eXpenses as Visit
Houston expenses. ‘é N A)}

On May 22, 2018, the City and the Corporation ente\ed @to‘the trséiAfnendment to the lease agreement
between the parties to amendment and restate %e(taJWprows ons rtammgato insurance, damage from
casualty and City Council approvals, allo e;and ap ermatlonsA -
R o
] ”>\

5 \,
Note 2. Summary of Signifi n@kcc fjhg F’ohmean\® =
pifigRibiCaouny W

Basis of Accounting—The fl*nanc;ekftatement q@ \%)Corp re(tb% have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, a flow of e\ﬁdﬁb\mlc res L{[ges me@ﬁ@ment focus. Under the measurement focus,
resources are recognlzecx\@ e perted;e@r@ed and@xpenses are recognized in the period incurred.

O ()
The Corporatlon deﬁ?tes operatlﬁeve{uteé\an)d expenses consistent with the precepts of Statement of
Government%ccéuntmg Standards Nci@ Generally, receipts collected or due from customers for
providing services are considered operatlng revenues. The payments or amounts due to provide these
services are considered operating expenses. All other receipts and payments are considered
nonoperating. The significant accounting policies are described below.

X

50

Cash and Cash Equivalents—The Corporation defines cash and cash equivalents as cash and
investments that are highly liquid, with less than three-month maturities when purchased.

Accounts Receivable—Accounts receivable are stated at the historical carrying amount net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts. An allowance for uncollectible accounts receivable has been
established based on historical experience and any specific customer collection issues that have been
identified. Uncollectible accounts receivable is written off when a settlement is reached for an amount that
is less than the outstanding historical balance or when management has determined that the balance will
not be collected. The allowance for doubtful accounts totaled $2,705,000 as of December 31, 2020.

Prepaid Expenses—Prepaid expenses include prepaid insurance, interest, and other miscellaneous
prepaid expenses. Prepaid insurance is expensed on a straight-line basis over the period of the

coverage.

15



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Other Assets—Other assets consist of the unamortized balance of prepaid rent that was paid by the
Corporation to the City under the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement and the unamortized balance of rent

concessions (see Note 9).

Investments—The Corporation participates in a City investment pool managed internally by City
personnel. The Corporation also invest in the Texas Short-Term Asset Reserve Program (TexSTAR).
TexSTAR was created in April 2003, under the Interlocal Cooperation Act of the State of Texas

Article 4413 (32C), Vernon’s Texas Civil Statutes, as amended. It is administered by First Southwest
Asset Management, Inc., and JPMorgan Chase. The City's investment funds are administered using a
pooling concept, which combines the monies of various City departments for investment purposes (the
City’s Investment Pools). The Corporation’s pro rata share of participation in the City’s Investment Pools
is displayed in the statements of net position as “Equity in pooled investments” held by the City in
accordance with the Governmental Accounting Standard Board (GASB) statement Ag@gc}hting Standards
Codification on Accounting and Financial Reporting for Certain /nye@ments for E)@ 1 ‘/%vestment Pools
and are carried at fair value. The fair value adjustment is include as part of(ig@es income. The

Corporation is apportioned interest earnings from the Cit&s@&’éé me(}f\g?(gfs%ased upon the
Corporation’s relative pro rata share of the applica_bLe\:fjn\fveétmgpgip%@%bd of the Corporation’s funds in
the City’s investment pools are restricted for de@ié?éwice a@%ﬂ% T xSTyinvestments are unrestricted.
Q \\§Q, : R N (&

Property, Plant and Equipment——l?\rqp'i?xjt}\}“blant\ag’géquipme\([t\v@éérecqgked at original cost for items
purchased. Capital assets are dgﬂ@éd;a ags&t@%i‘f-h an Jﬂii}@’l?‘é&t of $4(000°or more for Hotel operation
and $5,000 or more for othe@%ﬁé‘én@ﬂ@%’c@& useful,life’in exg@%},\éfﬂone fiscal year. Ordinary
maintenance and repairs are\bhargs\e(@k(@é%pegs;d(\’l\gh‘e\r\)incu_%é@ "ipenses related to the development of
real estate are carried at cos(t\, V\RId@)@épitg@\?@éﬁ?wing&@}@es.

X ‘/%\7\; A \\) v V7= (D,
Management revie;gs@:}‘f‘ohvg-livgd/aéé)éts fqg(inidé}?%ent whenever events indicate that the carrying
amount of an asget\may not be recovargﬁ ‘ef\lF)f ere is an indication of impairment, management prepares
an estimate ‘qf@ture undiscounted dé&bg"lows (without interest charges) expected to result from the use
of the asset and its eventual disposition. If these cash flows are less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognized to write down the asset to its estimated fair value. Preparation of
estimated expected future cash flows is inherently subjective and is based on management’s best
estimate of assumptions concerning expected future conditions. The loss of capital assets recognized by

the Corporation during the year ended December 31, 2020 totaled $3,069,000.

Depreciation—Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
depreciable assets, ranging from three to 40 years.

Capitalized Interest—The Corporation follows GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost
Incurred Before the End of a Construction Period, and no longer capitalizes interest on construction

projects.

Debt Issuance Costs/Notes Payable—Premiums and discounts included in notes payable are
amortized as a component of interest expense over the applicable term using the effective interest
method. Debt issuance costs are expensed when incurred.

16



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Unearned Revenue—A parcel of land was conveyed to the Corporation by the City for the construction
of the Hilton Parking Garage (the Parking Garage), which is attached to the Hotel. The cost of the land
was included as unearned revenue at the City’s recorded acquisition value of $3,144,362 at the date of
transfer. In addition, the City made a grant to the Corporation in the amount of $10 million, which provides
the City the right to use up to one-half of the spaces available in the Parking Garage and to share in the
net income of the parking proceeds in perpetuity. This right was transferred to the Corporation upon

formation.

The Corporation recognizes the unearned revenue as garage revenue ratably over the estimated 39-year
useful life of the Parking Garage. Amortization of unearned revenue for the year ended December 31,
2020 totaled $337,035, which is included in garage revenues.

Revenue Recognition—Service and other sales revenues are recognized when serwqeéjare rendered or

when revenue is earned, net of sales tax. © )&Q
P \

Intergovernmental Revenue From Primary GovernmentﬁAs\part of the:Q néolldatlon Interlocal
Agreement, the City assigned to the Corporation the qekayaﬂable k G@ied revenues to pay for operating
expenses, capital expenditures, and for any other }emzful purposel\ fhey are shown as
intergovernmental revenue from Primary G ve\r ment TQ \amo nt of mterﬁovernmental revenue from
the City totaled $60,712,154 for 2020, \n \representgdh‘ OT anq;pafkmg revenues remaining after
debt service of $16,413,358, other/re\(mbbrsed e)penses ofvg\%\}z%’?%( Z@X

< (\(d & )
Interlocal Agreement Expeﬁses to ané Go @ment—— rf%f the Consolidation Interlocal
Agreement, the Corporation agreed <t@9nake ce@ paymng pnmarlly for City obligations to the local
arts previously paid directly | b}{jtpe Degar(nfé\\ =~ At December 31, 2020, the interlocal agreement
expenses totaled $14,206 \’p*@ﬂ of whtc’:b>$’10 972\5@76 ‘and $3, 233,955 were related to funding of the arts

and sponsorshlp‘exeeﬁfse respectiﬁefy o S er

. O
Income Taxé%”——The Corporation is e}ee‘n%pt from federal income tax under Section 115 (1) of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986.

Effective for taxable years beginning on January 1, 2007, the State of Texas enacted the Revised Texas
Franchise Tax, which imposes a tax at the entity level. The Corporation is exempt from the Revised

Texas Franchise Tax.

Use of Estimates in Financial Statement Preparation—The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported financial statement amounts, as well as disclosures.
The Corporation’s financial statements include amounts that are based on management’s best estimates
and judgments. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

New Accounting Pronouncements—In June of 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases.
GASB Statement No. 87 requires recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of resources or outflows of
resources based on the payment provisions of the contract. Under this statement, a lessee is required to
recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required to recognize
a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency
of information about governments’ leasing activities. The requirements of GASB Statement No. 87 are
effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The Corporation early adopted GASB
Statement No. 87 effective January 1, 2020.

17



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In March of 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates. As a
result of global reference rate reform, LIBOR is expected to cease to exist in its current form at the end of
2021. The objective of this statement is to address accounting and financial reporting implications that
result from the replacement of an LIBOR. The removal of LIBOR as an appropriate benchmark interest
rate is effective for reporting periods ending after December 31, 2021. All other requirements of this
statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2021. The Corporation has not yet
determined effect on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows upon adoption.

In March of 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and
Availability Payment Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information
needs of financial statement users by improving the comparability of financial statements among
governments that enter into public-private and public-public partnership arrangements and provides
guidance for availability payment arrangements. The requirements of this statement ar'\“%\“é‘jfective for fiscal
years beginning after June 15, 2022, and all reporting periods thereafter. The Qor(@é\tion has not yet
determined effect on its financial position, results of operatip{iﬁg\ﬁgc sh flows@g[jébn adoption.
<50 PG

In May of 2020, the GASB issued Statement No. 95~,\\E<)\ét-\5\oneme\$@@he Effective Dates of Certain
Authoritative Guidance. The primary objective\qf\\t‘&’i%;Stateng’e\n\{fré 6 provide temporary relief to
governments and other stakeholders in ligh Q@h’é Cogk@j@pande@@}:ﬁhat objective is accomplished
by postponing the effective dates oAf ge :@ \provis\ip\@‘gm"Statg}ng‘rq)@g/énd I?ﬁ‘\lementation Guides. The
requirements of this statement (zégesgﬁﬁctivgﬁirgy@dTatelyﬂfﬁ\@fﬁﬂ%actg%}@ ~the Corporation is allowed to
delay the implementation da’@s\pﬁGAQ\B@B&fément%@at\have %jp@§e-n adopted.

> o AR ~ed
In May of 2020, the GASB is;gﬁd@%em%%ﬁ\ @a.@@)é, %@@ff@%anﬂased Information Technology
Arrangements. The objeci;\ﬁ@df/[his Statem nt is tqebetter meet the information needs of financial
statement users by @éﬁtéblishir)g;un‘ifbrm ac ounting and financial reporting requirements for
Subscription pasedimfdrmation t’e/chn,o\lgg?\ ahraﬁgements (SBITAS); (b) improving the comparability of
financial staﬁ%@‘hts among governrﬁt\ ts'that have entered into SBITAs; and (c) enhancing the
understandability, reliability, relevancé and consistency of information about SBITAs. The requirements of
this Statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2022. The Corporation has not yet

determined effect on its financial position, results of operations, or cash flows upon adoption.

In June 2020, GASB issued Statement No 97 Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The
objectives of this statement is to (1) increase consistency and comparability related to the reporting of
fiduciary component units in circumstances in which a potential component unit does not have a
governing board and the primary government performs the duties that a governing board typically would
perform; (2) mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension plans,
defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans, and employee benefit plans other than
pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as fiduciary component units in fiduciary
fund financial statements; and (3) enhance the relevance, consistency, and comparability of the
accounting and financial reporting for Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation
plans (Section 457 plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through
those plans. The Corporation has not yet determined effect on its financial position, results of operations,

or cash flows upon adoption.

18



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 3. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Corporation’s cash and cash equivalents balance of $15,630,570 as of December 31, 2020, are
maintained in cash, demand accounts, escrow, and money market mutual funds. The accounts that
comprise this balance are described below:

Demand deposit accounts $ 15,662,705
Cash on hand 67,865
Total $ 15,730,570

The demand deposit accounts are either fully collateralized by the depository institution primarily in direct
obligations of the U.S. government or its agencies, or insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation except for $581,659. The money market account is the sweep balance of one of the demand
deposit accounts. It is held with a mutual fund managed by Bank of America and [nvest\s@nmarlly in direct
obligations of the U.S. government or its agencies. P WXN

F o

&
<

(

Q@

Note 4. Equity in Pooled Investments \j\\ Q @

Short-Term Equity in Pooled Investments—A&o‘ﬂ\Decembe <34\\)20 0, the Corporation’s pooled
investments included $39,509,283, mvestec;kx\ theVTexa Sfic ort-Te Ass/ t Reserve Program
(TexSTAR). TexSTAR was created in Ap\@[@@ 3, undek )th‘ Inter Qog "Cooperation Act of the State of
Texas Article 4413 (32C), Vernon’s;Te)(aS Civil, Sta}ckfes as\\ame\1ded It@s(a ministered by First
Southwest Asset Management\onc?/and J Mérgan Chase’ The TeXaSXFA investment pools’ investments
are not evidenced by securitiés fhat exrgt i’ phyS|Qai\onook ent)y\form and, accordingly, do not have

custodial risk. J/\\x\ \hi\é’m SEQ®
@) \)J 2N

\2 \S

As with all the invest gn’g pools fundga\’e readl&\avanable to support daily cash requirements, while
maintaining ylelds @gﬁﬂy hlgherThani‘{??dérd "bank deposit accounts.

(/) }) X )
Equity in Pogled Investments—Restricted—The City issued bonds in 2001, 2011, 2012, 2014, 2015,
2017and 2019, a portion of which was for the benefit of the Corporation to fund construction, interest, and
operating expenses incurred during the construction of the Hotel, the Convention District Projects, and
the Development and Funding Agreement discussed in Note 6. Certain proceeds were designated as
debt service reserve funds to be used by the Corporation to service the debt during the initial months of
the Hotel's operations and during periods of decreased operational liquidity. In addition, the Corporation
makes monthly payments to the City to fund the semiannual bond payments made by the City. These
funds are restricted as debt service funds. All above-referenced funds are held in the City’s investment
pools. The balance of such accounts at December 31, 2020 totaled $23,932,368.

The City of Houston Investment Pool consists of U.S. Treasury Notes, Agency Notes, Municipal Bonds,
Certificates of Deposits, Money Market Funds and Mortgaged Backed Securities. Certain investment of
the Corporation are commingled in this pool to gain operational efficiency. The City of Houston included
the required risk disclosures for its Internal Investment Pool as part of the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report which is available on the City's website.

19



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 4. Equity in Pooled Investments (Continued)

As of December 31, 2020, the Corporation’s exposure to interest rate risk as measured by the segmented
time distribution by investment type is summarized below:

Investment Maturities in Years

Fair Value Less than 1 1-5
TexSTAR $ 39,509,283 $ 39,509,283 % -
Total $ 39,509,283 $ 39,509,283 % =

The Corporation’s exposure to credit risk at December 31, 2020 is presented below by investment
category as rated by Standard & Poor’s:
N

Fair Value (« \\\Q\\ Ratlng
\f @—o)
TexSTAR m\@) 50 509,23@5AAAm by Standard & Poor’s
Total . )\ | VS 396801283
(/f\\ AV //

Fair Value Measurements—The Corpora“umn is reqmre Ktc> dlscjes Fhe fair value level of its investments

within the fair value hierarchy estab;sghed 3 Iru‘leﬁfalr value hierarchy, there

are three levels: \”1\‘ X ’
R o ﬂ

Y\ m) J Cx\ X 7

1. Level 1: inputs that are quo hces (ur d‘ustedl xld ancaI assets or liabilities in active markets
A \Ex Yo

that a government can Qg\qess’ at theEmeasureme tdate
SN \\/ ‘j
2. Level 2: inputsy( \thi-:‘r than gueted prlcesvnclljded within level one) that are observable for an asset

or liabi lt{agthgr directly or |nd;\§t|y\) 3

3. Level 3: unobservable inputs for an asset or liability
The Corporation invests in both the City’s general pool and TexSTAR investment pool.

The City general pool investment is a Level 2 investment. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique provided by third party custodians. Matrix
pricing is used to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices.

TexSTAR is measured at net asset value. Under this method, fixed income securities are valued each
day by independent or affiliated commercial pricing services or third-party broker-dealers. When sufficient
market activity exists, the pricing services or broker-dealers may utilize a market-based approach through
which quotes from market makers are used to determine fair value. In instances where sufficient market
activity may not exist or is limited, the broker-dealers or pricing services also utilize proprietary valuation
models which may consider market transactions in comparable securities and the various relationships
between securities in determining value and/or market characteristics such as benchmark yield curves,
option adjusted spreads, credit spreads, estimated default rates, coupon-rates, anticipated timing of
principal repayments, underlying collateral, and other unique security features in order to estimate the
relevant cash flows, which are then discounted to calculate the fair values.

20



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 5. Deposits Held by Others

As discussed in Note 8, the Corporation closed a $125,000,000 mortgage loan with Variable Annuity Life
Insurance Company, (VALIC), which is secured by a deed of trust on the Hilton, its parking garage, the
improvements located thereon and certain personal property. In consideration of the Mortgage Loan,
VALIC required the Corporation to fund certain reserves to be held with their agent. The reserves
represent the subordinated management fee and the deferred fee from hotel operator, as discussed in
Note 9, and a reserve for furniture, fixtures, and equipment replacement and renewal. As more fully
described in Note 9, the termination of the former Hotel Management Agreement in 2014 caused a
corresponding release of the subordinated management fee reserves. As of December 31, 2020, the
deposits held by others included in the statement of net position totaled $3,044,919.

Note 6. Notes Receivable and Due From Affiliate

Development and Funding Agreement—On April 9, 2013, the Corporation entered g@&@i\g Development
and Funding Agreement with the Houston Center Hotel, LLC (Hotel:Owner), for t 'éjéfe\/elbpment of an
approximately 1,000-room new hotel facility located on the no h\\énd of the @g}’@ention Center. The
Development & Funding Agreement called for the Corp\ofgti@g\’fo’purqf@@?:'ahd convey the hotel site land
to the Hotel Owner and, subject to certain benchmarks, loa $27 rpkl[‘féﬂ to the Hotel Owner. The
purchase price of the hotel site land and other, qldéjﬁ_@‘fcost tg(a‘?@’)a\$32,1§;i,/221. The Hotel Owner was
obligated to a) design, construct, operate g\\@ﬁgﬁéiﬁt&lin@t@@ﬁcﬂel facility, and b) reimburse the Corporation
annually for the hotel site land and the<dar commengjag‘on ggo%%‘ryg%‘ Qf@&e year following opening of
> @@ O (T

the hotel facility. SN o 20
\\:‘)\?ﬂl\\’\(// \A\(\S ' N © oA
ner to oration was $58,136,102 as of December 31,
r;e(j‘tg@thér asg_;a@@h%e balance sheets. The note does not bear

&
2y

G S\ AV o @\ - e
The total receivable from the H tfeﬁxo\(/\//ner,te@% dorporafl@

2020, with $250,000 reported:in cur
.\\\\\) <

p g N ~al )
interest. Gy @

DC A P = (@) hv-

Buffalo Bayouﬁea\ﬁ‘f")ﬁé’r)ship—tﬁé Cor q@f@%ntered into an earnest money contract (the Contract) with
Buffalo Bayd@@a%’mership (the Selléi&l’fﬁe Seller agreed to sell to the Corporation certain real estate that
called for all building and improvements on the property to be modified in accordance with the Contract.
Prior to closing, the Seller agreed to receive and the Corporation agreed to advance the purchase price to
construct, restore and rehabilitate the Improvements located on the land. On September 17, 2018, the
Corporation paid the purchase price of $2,499,765 to allow the Seller to complete the design and
construction of the Project. The Seller did not complete the improvements. Accordingly, the Corporation
as the buyer and the Seller agreed to execute a termination agreement of the Contract along with the

associated note for the repayments of $2,499,765.

During fiscal year 2020, the Seller initiated the repayment of the purchase price. Total receivable from the
Seller was $2,496,100 as of December 31, 2020

21



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 6. Notes Receivable and Due From Affiliate (Continued)

The scheduled payments on the loan are as follows:

Total
Payments
Years Ending December 31:
2021 $ 294,601
2022 295,502
2023 296,420
2024 297,357
2025 2,048,313
2026-2030 3,256,593
2031-2035 \w\ || 6,783,556
2036-2040 O 7,813,352
2041-2045 7,846,279
2046-2050 9,882,666
2051-2055 10,422,873
2056-2060 10,258,587
2061-2065 1,136,102
$ 60,632,202
Note 7. Property, Plant and Egui )
o © O NI
The changes in the Corpqnaloh ] y al and, equment for the year ended December 31, 2020,
were as follows: )@ A ,\\4(5:: \;)
éi\?f Retirements and
g 2019 Additions Reclassifications 2020
Property, plant and equipment not subject to depreciation:
Land $ 14,824,298 § - $ B $ 14,824,298
Work in process 13,163,945 1,453,946 (9,474,010) 5,143,881
Total property, plant, and equipment not subject to depreciation 27,988,243 1,453,946 (9,474,010) 19,968,179
Property, plant and equipment subject to depreciation:
Buildings 574,159,500 32,841,699 (801,757) 606,199,442
Furnishings and equipment 48,830,849 961,723 (6,480,445) 43,312,127
Total property, plant and equipment subject to depreciation 622,990,349 33,803,423 (7,282,202) 649,511,569
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Hotel and garage buildings (129,235,365) (18,451,905) 801,757 (146,885,513)
Furnishings and equipment (38,291,554) (2,532,567) 6,480,445 (34,343,676)
Total accumulated depreciation (167,526,919) (20,984,473) 7,282,202 (181,229,189)
Total property, plant and equipment, net $ 483451673 § 14,272,896 § (9.474010) $ 488,250,559

22



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable

The Corporation’s notes payable and related premium for the year ended December 31, 2020 were as
follows:

January 1, Retirements/ December 31, Short Term
2020 Amortization Additions 2020 Payable
Notes payable:

Notes payable—City of Houston $ 321,495,000 $ (43,300,000) $ 21,000,000 $ 299,195,000 $ 19,967,601

Premium-—net of discount 29,693,354 (3,628,739) - 26,064,615 -
Total notes payable-City of Houston 351,188,354 (46,928,739) 21,000,000 325,259,615 19,967,601

Note payable—VALIC 125,000,000 - - 125,000,000 -
Total notes payable $ 476,188,354 $ (46,928,739) $ 21,000,000 $ 450,259,615 $ 19,967,601

AN

Payment of the Corporation’s notes payable to the City is based onthe amor’uzathn of the City
hotel-allocated bonds and HFC-allocated bonds. The VALIC l<\3qn’reqwres oﬂthly interest payments only
until maturity on May 1, 2024. Subsequent to year-end bqujmr\td |ssuan9e’ of]thls report, the Corporation

renewed the VALIC loan. (See Note 13.)  \ \Q\i\f\
.) N\

Scheduled principal and interest paymenﬁs‘r@n\deb} are wmhﬁanze \%gxfﬁfows
) & \f'w
" 2O Tmr\w\ , V)@\“

\ Q{Pl}ln\CIpa|:\\Q\\\> Interest Total

< \\‘,

Years Ending December 31:° 7
o @

2021 " $ 18,841,853 $ 36,036,853
2022 o ™ /918,900,000 18,139,531 37,039,531
2023 e < NP7 143,795,000 13,926,811 157,721,811
2024 RO® ~\\\‘ Oh 37,390,000 10,690,665 48,080,665
2025 16,155,000 9,478,558 25,633,558
2026-2030 91,785,000 38,226,445 130,011,445
2031-2035 70,180,000 16,081,393 86,261,393
2036-2040 21,395,000 4,044,500 25,439,500
2041-2044 7,400,000 755,000 8,155,000

$ 424,195,000 $ 130,184,756 $ 554,379,756

23



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable (Continued)

On April 3, 2013, the Corporation closed a $125,000,000 mortgage loan with VALIC, which is secured by
a deed of trust on the Hilton, its parking garage, the improvements located thereon and certain personal
property. The proceeds were used to further economic development in and around the Convention Center
and the Hilton, including a new 1,000-room convention center hotel, and to fund the Convention District
Projects including a new 1,900-space parking garage and certain other residential and retail opportunities
to be located on the north end of the Convention Center. The initial loan advance of $50,000,000 was
funded on April 4, 2013, at an initial interest rate of 3.90%. In March 2014, an additional $30,000,000 was
drawn and bears interest at 4.78%. In July 2014, the final draw of $45,000,000 was funded and bears
interest at 4.81%. The interest rates are effective through maturity.

In August 2014, the City issued $73,725,000 of Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department HOT
and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014. This issue included $52,195,000 of Serial Bonds
with stated interest rates between 2% and 5% maturing in various amounts from 201(5'(& 032, and
$21,530,000 of Term Bonds with stated interest rates of 5% matur ing in various agn unts‘from 2033 to
2039. The true interest cost was 4%. Proceeds were used to (a ind the lj?s Outstandlng
Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department Hotel chépar%cy Ta nd‘SpemaI Revenue Refunding
Bonds, Series 2012, (b) finance certain project costs.anc »(c pay @icg)sts of issuance of the bonds. Net
present value savings totaled $4.6 million or 11 ()\?L e refui'ld\é Onds//»

1\\ \)/\’ 2
On March 19, 2015, the City issued %’I\@g \59@ 000 % E\Ientlor@g nfertalr\ ent Facilities Department
HOT and Specnal Revenue Refqumg,Bonds éSeE es’201®§l;hlmssue @cﬂh ed $99,620,000 Serial Bonds
with stated interest rates betxveérf? 0% a(T 50/0 mi qp g/in var@L@ aﬂ"lounts from 2015 to 2035, and
$32,970,000 of Term Bonds With st@ted inferest, Eaktge betwee "4—,\0/ and 5.0% maturing in various
amounts from 2035 to 2044. Th\e ‘e mte\peéf\x@oé{ was3 @9/ Proceeds were used to (a (a) refund a portion
of the City’s outstandlng Qoﬂventlon Entertaln qat FaC|I|t|es Department HOT and Special Revenue
Refunding Bonds, Se Les\ 2011 (b ) refnd o}l:nistandmg commercial paper, (c) finance certain project costs
and (d) pay the oosfs S'of issuance of the, ands“Of the $132,590,000, the City loaned the Corporation
$99,620, OOO« ePpresent value savi\ ‘\é\fotaled $9.2 million or 13. 1% of the refunded bonds.

On November 16, 2017, the City issued $12,030,000 of Convention & Entertainment Facilities
Department HOT and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017. This issue has a stated interest
rates of 2.55% maturing in 2033. Proceeds were used to refund the City’s outstanding Convention &
Entertainment Facilities Department HOT and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011B. Net
present value savings totaled $1.9 million or 16.50% of the refunded bonds.

On November 16, 2017, the City issued $75,000,000 of Convention & Entertainment Facilities
Subordinate Lien HOT and Parking Revenue Flexible Rate Notes, Series A (Credit Facility Series A). As
of December 31, 2020, the outstanding balance was $20,000,000. The taxable variable rate is equal to
100% LIBOR plus1.08%. The tax-exempt variable rate is equal to 65.01% LIBOR plus 0.69%. The
commitment fee is equal to 0.20%.

On April 9, 2019, the City issued $106,320,000 of Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department HOT
and Special Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2019. This issue has a stated interest rates of 4%
and 5% maturing in 2036. Proceeds were used to (a) refund the City's outstanding Convention &
Entertainment Facilities Department HOT and Special Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2001 C-1 and
2001 C-2, (b) finance certain Hurricane Harvey related project costs, and (c) pay the costs of issuance of
the bonds. Net present value savings totaled $5.6 million or 8% of the refunded bonds.

24



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable (Continued)

On May 2, 2019, the City closed on a $50 million Subordinate Lien Hotel Occupancy Tax and Parking
Revenue Flexible Rate Notes, Series B (Credit Facility Series B). As of December 31, 2020 there were
$1,000,000 draws on this note and $49,000,000 is available. Interest is variable at the greater of
JPMorgan prime or the adjusted one month LIBOR rate plus a spread based upon the rating of the
existing senior lien Hotel Occupancy Tax and Parking Revenue Bonds. The commitment fee is equal to
0.1% and the notes terminate on May 2, 2026.

On May 3, 2019, the City loaned the Corporation $12,500,000, which was used to help finance project
costs related to Hurricane Harvey. The notes bear interest at the rate equal to a) the rate of the City's
commercial paper program or other debt instrument issued by the City, or b) the rate equal to the interest
earned on pool cash depending on how the City funds the notes. The interest rate on the note was
2.134% on December 31, 2019, and the note matures on September 1, 2030. q

N
On December 12, 2019 the City loaned the Corporation an additional $8,900,000 (foﬂman)ce project costs
related to Hurricane Harvey. Interest will accrue based on the\raf) récelved d the City’s commercial
paper Series E line, which was 1.30% at December 31 20\19&'71 nots mﬁfures on March 1, 2024.

Of the total $299,195,000 notes payable to the Clty T\$256 795 Qeo\of the prmcnpal balance relates to the
City’s fixed rate bonds and carries mterest\ratés;rangln fmm O%J\ ,5% $21,000,000 related to the
flexible rate notes and the remammg\ $2(¥\,4\00 000 relaféé to the<n<gfgs from<the Clty Interest presented on
the above payment schedule is calculated on the stated pte\resiﬁﬁate on>)tﬁe fixed-rate bonds and the
interest rate on the variable rate\notes asxot)“D”e’cember;M J2020 @Q =

\ { \\r
Hotel Management Agreemeqt The Cqm’qratio\n er{tergg\%}o a hotel management agreement (the
Management Agreementron»March 24;1 20®1U W{th \the\Hhton Hotels Corporation (the Hotel Operator).

The Management P(xgree;ment had aterm of :1[5\years and commenced with the opening of the Hotel.

Note 9. Co\\ﬁmitments and Cont\ih\;q«incies

On October 1, 2014, the Corporation executed a Management Agreement Termination Agreement (the
Termination Agreement) to terminate the Management Agreement described above and executed a new
Management Agreement (the New Management Agreement) with the Hotel Operator for the Hilton, with
an effective date of January 1, 2014. In connection with the Termination Agreement, the Hotel Operator
released the Corporation from repayment of the unamortized inducement fee from the original agreement,
and the Corporation disbursed the accrued subordinated management fee. The New Management
Agreement is effective for 15 years and, consistent with the original Management Agreement, the New
Management Agreement provides for a base management fee of $1,900,000 and a subordinated
management fee of $850,000 (collectively referred to as the Management Fees). The Management Fees
adjust annually based on the percentage change in the competitive set’s prior 12-month revenue per
available room with the base fee to commence adjustment effective January 1, 2015 and the subordinate
fee to commence adjustment effective January 1, 2017. The subordinate fee is also subject to sufficient
operating cash flows (as defined) and any unpaid subordinated fees will accrue. Upon termination of the
New Management Agreement, any unpaid subordinated fees will be due and payable.

Hurricane Harvey—Under the Consolidation Interlocal Agreement, the Corporation is responsible for
rebuilding and repairing the leased facilities in the event of a damage from casualty. The majority of these
costs have been reimbursed by the City based on approval of claims and obligation of such funds by
FEMA with only $1,137,981 remaining in the combined commitment at December 31, 2020.

25



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 9. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Pension—Since March 2015, the City has been involved in a lawsuit with the Houston Municipal
Employees Pension System (HMEPS) the subject of which is the determination of whether employees of
certain local government corporations and not-for-profit entities are employees of the City for purposes of
the pension. If HMEPS prevails, the City may be subject to additional funding requirements which could
result in those costs being passed on to the Corporation, the amount of which cannot be determined at
this time. Management believes such cost could be material to the financial statements. The City has
appealed and intends to continue to vigorously defend this litigation.

Hilton Room Refresh—The Corporation has undertaken a project to refresh the rooms at the Hilton
Americas-Houston. Each of the 1,237 rooms are being updated to include substantial redesign of the
bathrooms and improvements to amenities. At December 31, 2020, the project was approximately 100%

complete with a remaining obligation of approximately $44,761.
\\\

Guarantee—Every three years, the World Petroleum Council (Councxl) organlzeS\fheSV\fo>d Petroleum
Congress as the principal meeting place for a global dlscussmr\f»onl and ga &)@sues Following a
12-month campaign period, the City of Houston was selected by its fe!low@“oﬁncn members to host the
23rd World Petroleum Congress in December 20210The\WPC Qr% 4!’1‘2 ng Committee (the Organizing
Committee) was established as a 501(c)(6) noq r‘aﬂt corporatlon to'assis t with the organization,
administration, management, promotion anq eraflonsa(@img to h(\{st g the event. To induce the
Council to execute the agreement Wl{h“ e\\ \rganl mg‘Commﬂte@;ﬁxe Corp@ranon agreed to guarantee
the full payment and performance\éﬁall habjhtle\s; obhgatmns*and dutle&@g sed upon the Organizing
Committee. As of December\<3ﬂ\g2®20 then;e ‘has | beengno call on tpgi\guarantee The Corporation is unable
to estimate the potential llablhty, n‘ am(g,\ = ~RQ)

Note 10. Risk Manage! ment

26)
As the owner of theoHofeI operafed as. the\Hlltoh and as a local government corporation, the Corporation
maintains, or\bq:, maintained on its bebalf various policies and/or insurance programs to cover the
various risks of loss to which it is exposed Through commercial policies, the following coverages have
been secured: property, general liability, umbrella liability, auto and theft. In lieu of a workers’
compensation policy, the Hilton has procured a nonsubscriber program administered by a third-party
administrator. Due to the division of responsibilities, the Corporation maintains separate policies for
directors and officers, employment practices liability, crime and property.

The Corporation is a defendant in various pending lawsuits arising out of the conduct of its business.
Management does not believe that the outcome of any of these matters will have a material adverse
effect on the Corporation’s financial position, results of operations, or cash flows.

Note 11. Convention Services Agreements

The Corporation has agreements with various hotels to rebate their HOT. The purpose of these
agreements is to encourage the development of hotels in the City’s central business district, promote
local economic development and stimulate business and commercial. These agreements vary based on
the hotel’s proximity to the Convention Center and other criteria determined by the Corporation and
require a room block agreement. The room block agreement grants the Corporation access to a specified
number of room nights for use with city wide events.

The agreement with Hampton Inn Homewood Suites requires that 100% of their HOT paid will be paid

back to them. The hotel has agreed to provide HFC with room blocks for various events in exchange for
the agreement. The agreement with and Hampton Inn Homewood Suites is valid until April 1, 2023.

26



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 11. Convention Services Agreements (Continued)

The agreements with JW Marriott, Aloft Houston Downtown, LeMeridian and Alessandra state that 50% of
their HOT paid will be paid back to them. The agreements with JW Marriot, Aloft Houston Downtown,
LeMeridian and Alessandra will expire on September 1, 2021, December 1, 2023, October 1, 2032 and
October 1, 2024, respectively. All hotels have agreed to provide HFC with room blocks for various events
in exchange for this agreement.

The Corporation paid the following under the aforementioned agreements. Such amounts are included in
venue expenses for the year ended December 31, 2020.

JW Marriott $ 284,013
Hampton Inn Homewood Suites 322,241
Aloft Houston 73,048
Alessandra P -
LeMeridian ‘,}\’\fg\\ D 84,262
Total \,\)\@\\\‘p wr@/‘gﬁ 3 763,564
;}\\“ = '\'@K‘ NNy ~
Note 12. Leases N \\ \0¢ )\©\§S . H\‘})] &

\ ~
On January 1, 2020, the Corporatlon\lm}gjé%enteg’GASB State;n“e nt No. 87(, Leases, to match July 1,
2020 implementation of the Clty/Qfﬂoxfstothhr;kCorporat[dn&prﬁwarx govérnment This change in
accounting principle requn’ed\retrospegtlvé,appIlcatlo}f%o prlorQ g\fdﬂs\# resultmg in the restatement of net
position at the beginning of the yeaf‘ A‘ summary-oft restajqdobalance is as follows:

Cl /:\*’

B\ “As Prevnously GASB Statement  Restatement

gl & %\“f;j?) & Reported No. 87 Impact Reported

“\/\ < \\\\\X\'Q '

Lease receivable $ - $ 61,593,486 $ 61,593,486
Right to use lease asset - 14,536,130 14,536,130

Other assets—net 14,884,478 (14,884,478) -
Lease payable - 14,229,008 14,229,008
Deferred inflow from lease - 59,551,234 59,551,234
Net Position 162,680,811 (14,884,478) 147,796,333

As Lessor—The Corporation leases retail, office, rehearsal and equipment space in its managed
facilities to others. The majority of these facilities are subleased from the City of Houston. These leases
have terms between 22 months and 60 years, with payments required monthly, semiannually or annually.
In addition to the above payments, the Corporation receives variable payments for common area
maintenance, percentage of sales, pro-rata operating expenses and various utility reimbursements
associated with the spaces that are not included in the measurement of lease receivable.

27



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 12. Leases (Continued)
The total amount of inflows of resources recognized for the period ending December 31, 2020 is follows:

Inflows
Lease revenue $ 3,055,206
Interest income 1,022,483
Other variable 779,212

The Corporation did not recognized revenue associated with residual value guarantees and termination
penalties.

Below is a schedule of future payments that are included in the measurement ofthe Ieﬁsé receivable:
@)

ON
Year Prmcmaﬁ( » Jaterest Total
~O=

2021 \1 8835 Qaa\\” 2,020,911 $ 3,904,479
2022 ‘ \ B 15@48 963 -~ 1,949,905 3,898,868
2023 <\§/2’024 9@4@ 1,886,290 3,911,194
2024 2q1>9>§22 -0 1,819,174 3,938,396
2025 - \ 2176 784> @ 1,748,481 3,925,245
2026-2030 5\55/ 12,2 97319 7,575,692 19,873,011
2031-2035 a \()\@5793 189 5,225,307 21,018,496
2036-2040 \\m\g 713,939,641 2,537,358 16,476,999
2041-2045 © * 7,552,504 951,752 8,504,256
2046-2050 © N\ 1,784,856 91,338 1,876,194
2051 72,555 2,445 75,000

Total $ 61593485 $ 25808653 $ 87,402,138

As Lessee—The Corporation leases facilities and equipment from others. These leases have terms
between 3 years and 6 years requiring monthly or annual payments.

As of December 31, 2020, the total amount of Right to use lease assets by major class, and the related
accumulated amortization, disclosed separately from other capital assets is as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Deductions Balance
Leased assets being amortized:
Leased—equipment $ 419,496 $ - $ - $ 419,496
Leased—real estate 16,252,603 - - 16,252,603
Total leased assets being amortized 16,672,099 - - 16,672,099
Less accumulated amortization
Leased—equipment (90,053) - - (90,053)
Leased—real estate (2,321,800) - - (2,321,800)
Total accumulated amortization (2,411,853) - - (2,411,853)
Total, net of accumulated amortization  $ 14,260,246  $ - $ - $ 14,260,246

28



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 12. Leases (Continued)

The real estate right to use lease asset above is leased from the City of Houston and parts of these
facilities are leased to others, as noted above. The amount of lease expenses recognized for variable
payment not included in the measurement of the lease liability are $0.0 for the period ending
December 31, 2020. The Corporation did not recognized other payments attributable to residual value
guarantees or termination penalties not previously included in the measurement of the lease liability.

As of December 31, 2020, the principal and interest requirements to maturity for the lease liability is as
follows:

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending December 31:
2021 $ 2,212,206 % 502,095, NI $ 2,714,301
2022 2,273,797 _ 422«351&9 v 2,696,116
2023 2,339 899\\ &‘34’1 938 2,681,128
2024 3@%\%3 \J' 256,506 2,639,289
2025 ol 2427 427505 170,023 2,597,450
2026 " 2,592, 905/ _~ 80,618 2,673,523
Total $1>4$229 008:\“$ 1,772,799 _ $16,001,807
AN () M y}fn"
Note 13. Subsequent Even“ts \”\\e‘\@' \Ni(@;\:};\,

On March 1, 2021 and July 1, gOZ‘P the Q@rﬁoraflon dr %‘FO 000,000, respectively, from the City loan to
support recovery act|V|tleS\related to Ht;u\*ncane I—{ag\@y “The City Ioan has a variable interest rate, which is
at 1.340% for the outsﬁandlng draws. The nqte matures on September 1, 2027.

On April 28, 2021 the Corporation dresv $6 000,000 from Convention & Entertainment Facilities
Subordmate Lien HOT and Parking Revenue FIeX|ble Rate Notes, Series A.

Payroll Protection Program (PPP) loan: On April 19, 2021, the Corporation received funding from the
U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) for a PPP loan for $2,601,405. The proceeds are being used to
fund payroll costs at the Hilton Americas-Houston in 2021.

Shuttered Venue Operators Grant: On July 21, 2021, the Corporation received a $660,503 Shuttered
Venue Operators Grant from the SBA. The purpose of this grant is to offset economic hardships caused
by COVID-19 on venue operators.

Note 14. COVID

On January 31, 2020, the Secretary of the United States Health and Human Services Department
declared a public health emergency for the United States and on March 13, 2020, the President of the
United States declared the outbreak of COVID-19 in the United States a national emergency. As a result
of the pandemic and the various restrictions and guidelines related to controlling its spread, most event
organizers and arts groups canceled or postponed revenue-producing events and productions in the
Corporation managed facilities for the remaining year. In addition, most business travel ceased for the
remainder of the year. Most Houston businesses required employees to work from home. These
conditions resulted in a significant reduction in planned revenues.

29



Houston First Corporation
(A Component Unit of the City of Houston, Texas)

Note to Financial Statements

Note 14. COVID (Continued)

In response to the reduction in all of the major sources of revenue and the significantly reduced use of the
managed facilities, the Corporation’s Board of Directors adopted an emergency budget for the remainder
of the calendar year. The reduced expenditure budget recognized a period of limited activity in all facilities
managed by the Corporation. Personnel expenditure reductions were implemented and included both
layoffs and furloughs, as well as salary reductions of remaining personnel.

The City, as the primary government of the Corporation, provided $15 million in financial assistance, as
well as a commitment for a $20 million loan at rates more favorable than the Subordinated Note program.

30



IV. (B) Consideration and possible approval of an Insurance Brokerage and Risk
Management Services Agreement between Houston First Corporation and
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.




Consideration _and possible approval of an Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services
Agreement with Arthur 1. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.

DESCRIPTION: On June 22, 2021, Houston First Corporation (“HFC”) issued an Insurance Brokerage and
Risk Management Services Request for Proposals (“RFP”) from experienced and highly-qualified insurance
brokerage firms able to provide comprehensive insurance marketing, risk management, claims
management, and related services for HFC, Convention & Cultural Services, Inc., Houston First Holdings
LLC, the Greater Houston Convention and Visitors Bureau, and Comicpalooza.

HFC received a total of three proposals from Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.,
Higginbotham, and USI Southwest, Inc. Upon review and scoring of all proposals received, the firm that
received the highest score was Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. (“Gallagher”). Gallagher
will enterinto an Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services Agreement (“Agreement”) with HFC
for a term of five years in the amount of $387,000. Gallagher has also agreed to meet a 35% diversity goal
under the Agreement.

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Houston First Corporation approves the following resolutions
with respect to an agreement for Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Houston First Corporation hereby approves and authorizes the
finalization and negotiation of a Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services Agreement (the
“Agreement”) with Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc. together with such conditions or
modifications that are approved by the Chairperson or President, as they may determine to be in the best
interest of the Corporation and to execute such Agreement; each acting alone hereby is, severally and
without the necessity for joinder of any other person, authorized, empowered and directed for and.on
behalf of the Corporation to execute and deliver the Agreement in a form as approved by either the
Chairperson or the President, or any Authorized Person (defined below), such approval to be conclusively
established by the execution and delivery of the Agreement by any Authorized Person; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that each of the Chairperson, President and Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operating
Officer, General Counsel, and Chief Financial Officer of this Corporation are each hereby designated by
this Corporation as an “Authorized Person” for purposes of this resolution and with respect to the
Agreement to be executed hereunder; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Agreement executed by any Authorized Person, for and on behalf of and in
the name of this Corporation before or following the adoption of the foregoing resolution, in connection
with the described transaction, be and is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all respects for all
purposes.



IV. (C) Consideration and possible authorization of actions necessary to effectuate the transfer of
employees from Convention & Cultural Services, Inc. (CCSI) to Houston First Corporation effective
January 1, 2022, including, but not limited to, (i) approval of a notice of termination of the existing
Services Agreement between CCSI and Houston First; (i) transfer of sponsorship to, and the assumption
by, Houston First of each employee benefit plan, program, policy or arrangement sponsored by CCSI
(other than the CCSI 401(k) Plan) as well as any trust agreements, insurance plans and all service
agreements related to such plans, or provided on, or on behalf of, the employees or CCSI, that are
applicable to such transfer; and (iii) establishment of a deferred compensation 457(b) Plan for certain
eligible employees as well as approving an agreement to administer the 457(b) Plan.




Consideration and possible authorization of actions necessary to effectuate the transfer of employees
from Convention & Cultural Services, Inc. (CCSI) to Houston First Corporation effective January 1, 2022,
including, but not limited to, (i) approval of a notice of termination of the existing Services Agreement
between CCSl and Houston First; (i) transfer of sponsorship to, and the assumption by, Houston First
of each employee benefit plan, program, policy or arrangement sponsored by CCSI (other than the CCS|
401(k) Plan) as well as any trust agreements, insurance plans and all service agreements related to such
plans, or provided on, or on behalf of, the employees or CCS|, that are applicable to such transfer; and
(iii) establishment of a deferred compensation 457(b) Plan for certain eligible employees as well as
approving an agreement to administer the 457(b) Plan.

Houston First management recommends that the corporation, in conjunction with Convention & Cultural
Services, Inc. (“CCSI”), take all necessary actions to effectuate the transfer of CCSl employees to Houston
First on January 1, 2022. Such actions are necessary in preparation for the City’s settlement of its lawsuit
with the Houston Municipal Employees Pension System (“HMEPS”). When the lawsuit between the City
and HMEPS is settled, all current CCSI employees will be legally HMEPS’ members and the employees, as
well as Houston First, will begin contributing to HMEPS. At this time, a settlement has not been reached
and it is unknown when any such contributions will begin, but no contributions are anticipated earlier
than January 1, 2022. However, in an abundance of caution, effectuating the transfer of the employees
on January 1 will facilitate the contribution process once a settlement has been reached.

Management is requesting authorization to take all steps to execute the transfer of the employees to
Houston First, inclusive of, but not limited to, the following parameters:

e Providing a notice of termination on behalf of Houston First to CCSI of the Services Agreement;

* Authorizing the issuance of Employment Letters to all CCSI employees;

e Accepting the transfer of sponsorship, and the assumption of, each employee benefit plan,
program or arrangement sponsored by CCSI, including, but not limited to, the CCSt Cafeteria Plan
(Section 125 Plan), CCSI Health Reimbursement Arrangement, Health and Dental Plans, Vision
Plan, and Life Insurance Plans (other than the CCSI 401(k) Plan) as well as any trust agreements,
insurance plans, and all service agreements related to such plans, or provided on, or on behalf of,
the employees or CCSI or required to facilitate payroll, that are applicable to such transfer;
effective January 1, 2022;

e Establishing a deferred compensation plan 457(b) Plan for certain eligible employees as well as
approving an agreement to administer the 457(b) Plan;

¢ Adopting the CCSI Paid Time Off Policy, as well as any other applicable policy; and

* Authorizing the approval of such other notices, contracts or agreements as may be advisable or
required to facilitate the transfer of the CCSI employees to Houston First.

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Houston First Corporation approves the following resolutions
with respect to the transfer of the CCSI employees to Houston First:

RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of Houston First Corporation hereby approves and authorizes the
issuance of Employment Letters to all CCSl employees and the transfer of such CCSl employees to Houston
First, effective January 1, 2022; and further authorizes Houston First management to effectuate such
transfer, in accordance with the above parameters, by directing management to take any and all actions
as may be necessary or required to adopt applicable CCSi policies such as the Paid Time Off Policy, execute



and deliver notices and documents, including without limitation, any amendments or assignments to such
documents that are deemed required by the Chairperson, President, or General Counsel, as they may
determine to be in the best interest of Houston First (the “Documents”), and to execute such Documents;
each acting alone hereby is, severally and without the necessity for joinder of any other person,
authorized, empowered and directed for and on behalf of Houston First to execute and deliver the
Documents in a form as approved by either the Chairperson or the President, or any Authorized Person
(defined below), such approval to be conclusively established by the execution and delivery of the
Documents by any Authorized Person; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that each of the Chairperson, President, and General Counsel of Houston First are
each hereby designated by the Board as an “Authorized Person” for purposes of this resolution and with
respect to the Documents to be executed hereunder; and

FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Documents executed by any Authorized Person, for and on behalf of and in
the name of Houston First Corporation before or following the adoption of the foregoing resolution, in
connection with the described transaction, be and is hereby ratified, confirmed and approved in all
respects for all purposes.



Houstonfirst.

HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MEETING

N

N AN
, = gr— SN\,
=

N N
CRSSIN




PUBLIC
COMMENTS

Anyonewho wishes to address the
Board during the Public Comment
session may do so by signing up on the
Public Comment sign-in sheet at the
front of the room.

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021

Houstonfirst

2 HFC BOARD MEETING




Space CenterHouston
BAY AREA

MINUTES

August 26, 2021

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021

" ? . Houstonfirst

=3 HFC BOARD MEETING



\
L
Waalking M olecular Flow er, James Surls l\ " ‘. i\\ m H ll

RICEUNIVERSITY

HOUSTON FIRST

BOARD
BUSINESS

A.Consideration and possible approval of
the Houston First 2020 Annual Financial
Audit.

Frank Wilson
Chief Financial Officer, HFC

Karen Tang,
Assistant Controller, HFC

Joel Perez,
Partner, AuditServices - RSM

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021

4 HFC BOARD MEETING HouStOnflrSt




OPERATING UNITS

INCLUDED

* Leased Assets
(operations formerly included in CEFD)

e Hilfon Americas-Houston Hotel

* Visit Houston
(operations formerly included in GHCV B)

5 HFC BOARD MEETING

EXCLUDED

« Conventionand Enterfainment
Facilities Department (CEFD)
debt and fixed assefts

« Greater Houston Convention
and Visitors Bureau remaining
operations

Houstonfirst



NET POSITION

TOTAL ASSETS DECREASED $68,000 OVER 2019

« Current assets decreased by $67M
(majority of change is Cash and cash equivalents down $49.5M)

« Non-current assets increased by $67M
($59M is due to New GASB statement related to leases)

TOTAL LIABILITIES DECREASED $23.7M OVER 2019

* Principal payments - $43.3M offset by
 New money borrowings: 2020 Note withdraw — $20M

Houstonfirst



RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

« OVERALL NET LOSS - $21.3M
« $100.3M decrease from 2019

* The majority of the decrease was attributable to COVID-19’s
impacton operations in 2020

« Also, in 2020, the Corporationreceived $41M in reimbursement
from the City of Houston related to Hurricane Harvey
comparedto $82M in 2019

ARD MEETING HOuStOnflrSt}



8 HFC BOARD MEETING

REVENUES IN 2020

(FROM HIGH TO LOW)

Intergovernmental revenue from

Primary Government

(HOT, Pledged Parking, Harv ey reimbursements,
less CEFD debt service)

Hotel revenue
Venue revenue

Avenida Parking revenue

$60.7M

$27.7M

$19.7M

$5.6M

Houstonfirst



9 HFC BOARD MEETING

EXPENSES IN 2020

(FROM HIGH TO LOW)

General and Administrative
(indirect marketing, management fees, rebates,
legal, information technology)

Venue expenses
(maintenance, personnel, janitorial, utilities)

Hotel expenses
(cost of goods sold, direct costs related to Hilton)

Visit Houston expenses
(destination marketing, tourism, destination sales)

$30.9M

$26.9M

$13.0M

$10.7M

Houstonfirst



REVENUE VARIANCE

* Intergovernmental revenue from Primary Government —
decreased $93.9M due to the decrease of both HOT and City
reimbursementrelated to Hurricane Harvey.

* Hotel revenue (Hilton America’s revenue) — decreased
$64M due to the COVID-19

10 HFC BOARD MEETING Houstonflrst}



EXPENSE FLUCTUATION

EXPENSES DECREASED:

« Expenseswere reduced in every category due to COVID-19
(Hotel and event cancellation, staffingreduction, and
assistance from PPP loans)

EXPENSES INCREASED:

« Depreciation expense increased $3.3M — Fixed Asset balance
increased due to Hotel renovation project completeness and
work on Harvey restoration

11 HFC BOARD MEETING Houstonflrst}



THE POWER
OF BEING
UNDERSTOQOD




HOUSTON FIRST CORPORATION

Report to the Members of the Benefits, Compensation and Finance
Committee and the Board of Directors

Audit for the Year Ended December 31, 2020
September21,2021

RSM



With you today

Kristi D. Sharp

Partner

Stephen Yoe

Managing Partner
(Subcontractor)

14

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

JoelPerez Margie Oyedepo
Partner Manager
Tino Robledo

Senior Director

RSM



To the Members of the Benefits, Compensation and
Finance Committee and the Board of Directors

Houston First Corporation

Houston, Texas

Dear Members:

We are pleased to present this report related to our audit of the financial statements of Houston First
Corporation (the Corporation) as of and for the year ended December 31, 2020. This report summarizes
certain matters required by professional standards to be communicated to you in your oversight
responsibility for the Corporation’s financial reporting process.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Benefits, Compensation and
Finance Committee, Board of Directors and management of the Corporation and is not intended to be, and
should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties. It will be our pleasure to respond to any
guestions you have about this report. We appreciate the opportunity to continue to be of service to Houston
First Corporation.

15 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Agenda

Overview of Benefits, Compensation and Finance Committee communications to auditor 6
Overview of management and independent auditor’s responsibilities 7-8
Audit overview and scope 9
Results of the independent audit 10
Required communications 11-15
Role of subcontractor—Yoe CPA, LLC 16

N N

16 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Overview of Benefits, Compensation and Finance (BCF)

Committee communications to auditor

« Communication on issues of concern
« Questions on financial reporting or financial statement disclosures

« Concerns about accuracy of financial information being provided by
management

« Concerns about fraud or misappropriation of assets

« Concerns about management integrity

« Concerns about the accounting for specific transactions
« Among other matters

17 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Overview of management responsibilities

« Perform monthly accounting and reporting
« Reconcile all accounts as of year-end

« Assure the general ledger is complete
 Establish a system of internal control

 Provide auditor with draft financial statements that comply with
GASB Standards

* Prepare the Management’s Discussion and Analysis section of the
financial statements

« Among others

C RSM

M US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Overview of independent auditor’s responsibilities

« Conduct audit of the financial statements in compliance with
auditing standards

 Design risk-based audit approach and perform audit procedures

« Based on results of audit procedures, determine if the financial
statements are fairly presented

* [ssue independent auditor’s report
« Communicate results of the audit to those charge with governance

Co RSM

M US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Audit overview and scope

» The Corporation’s financial statements

- Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

- Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit.

- Scope of the audit:

* Includes examining evidence, on a test basis, supporting the amounts and disclosures included in
the financial statements

* Includes an assessment of the internal control structure for purposes of auditing the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, but not for providing an opinion on internal control

* Includes an assessment of accounting principles, significant estimates made by management and
disclosures to the financial statements

- Objective of financial statement audit—to report whether the financial statements are fairly

presented in conformity with required standards
N I

20 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



I Results of the independent audit

* Financial statement audit results:
- Opinion on the financial statements: Unmodified

- The financial statements are presented fairly, in all material respects, in

conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America

-~ Emphasis of matter — As described in Note 12, effective January 1, 2020,
the Corporation adopted Statement No. 87 of the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, Leases. The implementation of Statement No. 87 restated
beginning net position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

- No reportable deficiencies on internal control were noted

21 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Required communications

Required Communications

Generally accepted auditing standards (AU-C 260, The Auditor's Communication With Those Charged
With Governance) require the auditor to promote effective two-way communication between the auditor
and those charged with governance. Consistent with this requirement, the following summarizes our
responsibilities regarding the financial statement audit, as well as observations arising from our audit that
are significant and relevant to your responsibility to oversee the financial reporting process.

Area

Comments

Our Responsibilities With
Regard to the Financial
Statement Audit

Overview of the Planned
Scope and Timing of the
Financial Statement Audit

22

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

Our responsibilities under auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America have been described to you in our
arrangement letter dated March 15, 2021. Our audit of the financial
statements does not relieve management or those charged with
governance of their responsibilities, which are also described in that
letter.

We have issued a separate communication, dated March 15, 2021,
regarding the planned scope and timing of our audit and identified
significant risks.

RSM



Required communications (continued)

Accounting Policies and Preferability of Accounting Policies and Practices

Practices Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, in certain circumstances, management may select among
alternative accounting practices. In our view, in such circumstances,
management has selected the preferable accounting practice.

Adoption of, or Change in, Accounting Policies

Following is a description of significant accounting policies or their
application that were either initially selected or changed during the
year: The Corporation early adopted Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 87 for the year ended
December 31, 2020. This new standard requires recognition of certain
lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously were classified as
operating leases and recognized as revenues or expenses based on
the payment provisions of the contract. As a result of the adoption of
the pronouncement, the Corporation restated beginning net position in
the amount of $14.9 million. The following are amounts reported as of
December 31, 2020:

As a lessee, the Corporation recorded an intangible right to use lease
asset of $14.3 million with a related lease payable of $14.2 million.

As a lessor, the Corporation recorded a lease receivable of $61.6
million offset by a deferred inflow of resources of $59.6 million.

23 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



Required communications (continued)

Accounting Policies and
Practices (continued)

Audit Adjustments
Uncorrected Misstatements

Disagreements With
Management

24

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

Significant or Unusual Transactions

We did not identify any significant or unusual transactions or
significant accounting policies in controversial or emerging areas for
which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus.

Management’s Judgments and Accounting Estimates

Summary information about the process used by management in
formulating particularly sensitive accounting estimates and about our
conclusions regarding the reasonableness of those estimates is in the
attached Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates.

There were no audit adjustments made to the original trial balance
presented to us to begin our audit.

We are not aware of any uncorrected misstatements other than
misstatements that are clearly frivial.

We encountered no disagreements with management over the
application of significant accounting principles, the basis for
management's judgments on any significant matters, the scope of the
audit, or significant disclosures to be included in the financial
statements.

RSM



Required communications (continued)

Consultations With Other
Accountants

Significant Issues Discussed
With Management

Significant Difficulties
Encountered in Performing
the Audit

Significant Written
Communication Between
Management and Our Firm

25

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

We are not aware of any consultations management had with other
accountants about accounting or auditing matters.

Mo significant issues arising from the audit were discussed or the
subject of correspondence with management.

We did not encounter any significant difficulties in dealing with
management during the audit.

A copy of a significant written communication between our firm and
management of the Corporation, the representation letter provided to
us by management, is attached as Exhibit A.

RSM



Required communications (continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Estimates

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the preparation of financial statements and are based upon
management’s current judgment. The process used by management encompasses its knowledge and
experience about past and current events, and certain assumptions about future events. Management

may wish to monitor throughout the year the process used to determine and record these accounting
estimates. The following describes the significant accounting estimates reflected in the Corporation’s
December 31, 2021 basic financial statements.

Management'’s

Basis for Our
Conclusions on
Reasonableness of

Estimate Accounting Policy Estimation Process Estimate
Depreciable Life of The depreciable life of The determination is We concluded the
Property and property and equipment  made at the time the estimates used by
Equipment is set at the estimated asset is placed into management are

useful life of the related  service and involves reasonable.
asset. various judgments and
assumptions, including
the estimated useful life
and prior experience.
Leases The policy requires The calculation of the We concluded the

26

recognition of certain
assets and liabilities for
leases that are
considered long term
and require a present
value calculation using
the incremental
borrowing rate.

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

present value is made
upon the execution of a
lease agreement based
on the rate of a recently
executed financing
agreement.

estimates used by
management are
reasonable based on
the present value
calculations and related
terms used.

RSM



Role of subcontractor—Yoe CPA, LLC

 In an effortto partner with and assistthe Corporationin its responsibility to foster the development
and growth of diverse companies, we have teamed up with Yoe CPA, LLC, a subcontractorto
RSM. This firm is a diverse company and is classified as a HUB enterprise.

* Yoe CPA, LLC service team included Stephen Yoe and Victor Bustamante.
* Yoe CPA, LLC worked side-by-side with RSM service team throughout the audit.

* Yoe CPA,LLCwas issued RSM laptops to facilitate integration of the two firms and provide for a
seamless client service experience.

 Areas primarily worked on included the following:

- Investments

- Capital assets
- Long-term debt
- Revenues

- Expenses
N N

27 RSM

© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.



QUESTIONS

AND ANSWERS




THANK YOU FOR
YOUR TIME AND
ATTENTION




RSMUSLLP

1330 Post Oak Blvd, Suite 2400
Houston, Texas 77056

713 625 3500

800 274 3978
WWW.rsmus.com

This document contains general information, may be based on authorities that are subjectto change, and is not a substitute for professional advice or services. This
document does not constitute audit, tax, consulting, business, financial, investment, legal or other professional advice, and you should consult a qualified professional
advisor before taking any action based on the information herein. RSM US LLP, its affiliates and related entities are not res ponsible for any loss resulting fromor relating to
reliance on this document by any person. Internal Revenue Service rules require us to inform you that this communication may be deemed a solicitation to provide tax
services. This communication is being sent to individuals w ho have subscribed to receive it or w ho we believe w ould have an interestin the topics discussed.

RSM US LLP is a limited liability partnership and the U.S. member firmof RSM International, a global netw ork of independent audit, tax and consulting firms. The member
firms of RSM International collaborate to provide services to global clients, but are separate and distinctlegal entities that cannot obligate each other. Each member firmis
responsible only for its ow n acts and omissions, and not those of any other party. Visit rsmus.com/aboutus for more information regarding RSM US LLP and RSM
International.

RSM, the RSM logo and the power of being understood are registered trademarks of RSM International Association.
© 2020 RSM US LLP. All Rights Reserved.

o RSM



31 HFC BOARDMIEETING

BOARD BUSINESS

B. Consideration and possible approval of
an Insurance Brokerage and Risk
Management Services Agreement
between Houston First Corporation and
Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management
Services, Inc.

PRESENTERS
Frank Wilson

Chief Financial Officer

Roger Harris
Development Specialist Manager

HFC BOARD MEETING
September 23, 2021

Houstonfirst



GOALS & OBJECTIVES

Houston First Corporation (“HFC") requests proposals from
experienced, highly-qualified insurance brokerage firms able to
provide comprehensive insurance marketing, risk management,
claimsmanagement, and related services for HFC, Conventionand
Cultural Services, Inc. (Y*CCSI"), Houston First Holdings LLC (“HFH"),
the Greater Houston Convention and Visitors Bureau (Y*GHCVB"),
and Comicpalooza LLC (collectively, the “Affiliated Entities”).

Houstonfirst

32 HFC BOARD MEETING



PROCESS OF SELECTION

M 6/22 M7/13 M8/13 M 9/21
RFP Issue Date Pre-Bid Meeting Submission Selection Committee
Committee Meeting Recommendation
E47/28 [19/23
Submission HFC Board
Deadline Recommendation

33 HFC BOARD MEETING HOUStOﬂflI'StJ



SOLICITATION
MEDIA
ADVERTISEMENT

Notice of Solicitation:
» B2G Notfifications

« City Council Members

« HFC Board Members

« Community Stakeholders

34 HFC BOARD MEETING

PUBLICATIONS ADVERTISED

HOUSTON
BUSINESS JOURNAL

M

A Hispanic News & Entertainment Publication

‘l"Defender

Network.com

Houstonfirst.



SELECTION COMMITTEE

ELIZABETH WOODS LISA SMITH

Director of Finance Direct or of Budgets & Accounts Payable
Hilton Americas-Houston Houston First Corporation

JOHN GONZALEZ KAREN WILLIAMS

Senior Vice President & General Manager Senior Vice President of Finance
Houston First Corporation Houston First Corporation

Houstonfirst

35 HFC BOARD MEETING



36 HFC BOARD MEETING

SELECTION CRITERIA

=] TRANSMITTAL LETTER: 10
1 EXPERIENCE: 20
25 ESSENTIAL PERSONNEL: 15
(& MARKETING SERVICES: 25
3 PRICING: 20
d» DIVERSITY: 10

Houstonfirst



PROPOSERS

& Gallagher

PRICE $387,000

36%

@ Higginbotham

251.0
$2,750,000
36%

MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION:

Approvalof Insurance Brokerage and Risk Management Services Agreement between
Houston First Corporation and Arthur J. Gallagher Risk Management Services, Inc.

37 HFC BOARD MEETING

US|

314.0
$750,000
35%

Houstonfirst



Railw ay Heights M arke}
GREATER HEI GHIS

N
78
'.

B

i‘

HOUSTON FIRST

BOARD
BUSINESS

C. Consideration and possible authorization of actions necessary
to effectuate the fransfer of employees from Convention &
Cultural Services, Inc. (CCSI) to Houston First Corporation effective
January 1, 2022, including, but not limited to, (i) approval of a
nofice of fermination of the existing Services Agreement between
CC3SI and Houston First; (i) transfer of sponsorship to, and the
assumption by, Houston First of each employee benefit plan,
program, policy or arrangement sponsored by CCSI (other than
the CCSI 401k Plan) as well as any trust agreements, insurance
plans and all service agreements related to such plans, or
provided on, or on behalf of, the employees or CCSI, that are
applicable to such transfer; and (iii) establishment of a deferred
compensation 457(b) Plan for certain eligible employees as well
as an agreement to administrate the 457(b) Plan.

PRESENTER
Michael Heckman

President & CEO

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

September 23, 2021
Houstonfirst



CCSITO HFC TRANSITION

Requested action by HFC Board:

e Authorize a notice of termination of Services Agreement between HFC and
CCSl;

e Authorize the issuance of employment letters to all CCSI employees;

 Accept the assignment and transfer of all benefit plans, trust
agreements, and contracts associated with the employment, effective
1/1/2022

* Establish a deferred compensation 457(b) Plan as well as an agreement to
administer the Plan;

* Adopt the CCSI Paid Time Off policy, as well as any other applicable policy;
and

* Authorize the approval of such notices, contracts, or agreements to facilitate
transfer of CCSI employees to HFC.

39 HFC BOARD MEETING Houst)onfllast



CityCenfre
~MEM QRIAL.CLTY ™

HOUSTON FIRST

CHAIRMAN'S
REPORT

DAVID M. MINCBERG

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021

Houstonfirst



HOUSTON FIRST

PRESIDENT & CEO
REPORT

MICHAEL HECKMAN

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021

Houstonfirst



UPDATES

« Announcement of
Top Chef Houston

» State of the City planning

 Board and Staff
Luncheon - October 7

« ConsularBall

* US Travel Association’s
IPW Conference

« 2022 Budget and Strategy
Development

Houstonfirst



JorAg, HO

ustonfirst. " WQ.

15 COMS To0U

HOUSTON FIRST

2021 YTD SUPPLIER
DIVERSITY REPORT

Undergraduate Programs (B.

Roger Harris
Development Specialist Manager

HFC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
September 23, 2021

Houstonfirst



2021 YTD SUPPLIER DIVERSITY

_ TOTALSPEND DIVERSITY PERCENT

GENERAL OPERATIONS 5923,491.22 $234,510.86 25.39%

SERVICE CONTRACTS $5,848,568.00 $3,480,539.40 59.51%

HILTON AMERICAS $261,339.51 $223,107.53 85.37%

TOTAL $7,033,398.73 $3,938,157.79 56%
Houstonfirst

44 HFC BOARD MEETING



2021 YTD SUPPLIER DIVERSITY BY ETHNICITY
_-

ASIAN

AFRICAN AMERICANS

CAUCASIAN

HISPANIC

TOTAL

45 HFC BOARD EETING

$232,562.59
$446,649.64
$1,146,196.15
$2,112,749.41

$3,938,157.79

11.3

29.1

53.6

56.3

19

35

20

85

Houstonfirst



Houstonfirst

www.HoustonFirst.com



